
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

Monday, April 16, 2018 
3:00 p.m. Tour of Inspection 

4:00 p.m. Open Session 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:    ERIK DYAR, CHAIR  
      KATHRYN GUALTIERI, VICE CHAIR 
      LYNN MOMBOISSE 
      THOMAS HOOD 
      ALEX HEISINGER 
 
B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
Shortly after 3:00 p.m., the Board will leave City Hall for an on-site Tour of Inspection. The public is 
welcome to follow the Historic Resources Board on its tour of the subject sites. The Board will 
return to City Hall at 4:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible.   
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
D.  APPEARANCES 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the Board may do so now. 
Please state the matter on which you wish to speak. Matters not appearing on the Board’s agenda will 
not receive action at this meeting, but may be referred to staff for a future meeting. Presentations will 
be limited to three minutes, or as established by the Board. Persons are not required to give their 
name or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state their name in order that the Secretary may 
identify them.  
 
E.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Consideration of the minutes of March 19, 2018 Historic Resources Board Meeting. 
 
F.  ITEM 
 
1. DS 17-174 (Munro)  

Scott and Karen Munro, Property owners  
 Carmelo St., 2 NW of 7th Ave 
 Block: S;  Lots: 13 and 15  
 APN: 010-267-004 
 
 
 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-174) 
for an addition to a historic residence located in 
the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District and consideration of the adoption of a 
resolution to add a historic resource to the 
Carmel Historic Register 
 
 

1



2. DS 17-335 (Voris)  
Michael & Roberta Voris 
Torres Street, 5 NE of 6th Ave 
Block: 60, Lot(s): 10 & N ½ of 12 
APN: 010-092-010 
 

3. HE 18-136 (Carmel Police Dept) 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
SE Corner of Junipero Street & 4th Ave 
Block: 48, Lot(s): 1-6 
APN: 010-096-013 

Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-335) 
for additions to a historic residence located in 
the Single Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District 
 
 
Consideration of a Determination of Ineligibility 
(HE 18-136) for the Carmel Police Department. 

 
 
G. DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
 
 
H.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
I.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Historic Resources Board regarding any 
item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning and Building 
Department located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean and 7th Avenues during normal 
business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Historic Resources Board: Monday, May 21, 2018 
  
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. The City of 
Carmel-by-the-Sea Telecommunication’s Device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired (TDD) number is 1-
800-735-2929. 
 
The City Council Chambers is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to come to 
the podium. Assisted listening devices are available upon request to the Board Secretary. If you 
need assistance, please advise the Board Secretary what item you would like to comment on, and 
the microphone will be brought to you. 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Marc E. Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director, for the City of Carmel-by-the-
Sea, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 
California, that the foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin 
board and posted at the Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln, April 13, 2018. 

Dated this 12th day of April 2018, at the hour of 3:00 p.m. 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
Marc E. Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 

2



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

March 19, 2018 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Dyar at 4:07 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair 
Thomas Hood 
Lynn Momboisse 
Alex Heisinger (Present at Tour Site) 
 

 
  ABSENT:   Kathryn Gualtieri, Vice Chair 

 
 
 STAFF PRESENT: Marc Wiener, Planning Director 
    Marnie Waffle, Senior Planner 
    Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner 
                                        Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  

 
B. TOUR OF INSPECTION  
 Tour of Inspection convened at 3:30 p.m.  
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Members of the audience joined the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D.  ANNOUNCEMENTS/APPEARANCES  

N/A 
 

E. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Consideration of the minutes of the February 26, 2018 Historic Resources Board 
Meeting. 
 
Board Member Momboisse moved to approve the draft minutes from the February 
26, 2018 Historic Resources Meeting with corrections. Motion seconded by Board 
Member Hood and carried the following vote: 2-0-1-2.  
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: MOMBOISSE & HOOD   
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

3



ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI 
ABSTAIN:          COMMISSIONERS: HEISINGER & DYAR 
 

G. ITEM 
 

      1. DS 17-459 (Rezai) 
       John Mandurrago, Designer 
       NE corner of Forest Rd. & 8th Ave. 
       Block: 3; Lot: 11 
       APN: 009-202-015             

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-459) 
for alterations to a historic residence located 
in the Single Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District. 

 
Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner presented the staff report.  
 
Speaker #1: John Mandurrago, Project Designer voiced support for the staff report and 
was available to answer questions from the Board.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing seeing no other speakers Chair Dyar closed the 
public hearing. 
 
The Board held discussion. The Board complemented the improved design. Board 
Member Momboisse noted her specific concerns were addressed. Board Member Hood 
voiced support for the revisions. Chair Dyar noted support for either a stone or wood 
fence and suggested the removal of the awning. Board Member Hood suggested the 
applicant reduce the size of the awning as to not exceed the addition. Board Member 
Heisinger expressed support of the removal of the stone on the north side of the 
residence. Board Member Momboisse inquired about the gutters included in the 
rehabilitation plan.   

Mr. Mandurrago answered questions regarding the proposed gutters.   

Board Member Hood motioned to Issue a Determination of Consistency with the 
Secretary of Interior Standards for DS 17-459 (Rezai) with the following conditions of 
approval: apply paint/trim on the second floor doors on the south elevation to match 
the existing residence, reduce the length and thickness of the roof entry canopy as to 
not exceed four feet in depth, provide a specific courtyard wall design for 
administrative staff review and to restore the outriggers on the south elevation. 
Motion seconded by Board Member Momboisse and carried the following roll call 
vote: 4-0-1-0. 

AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: HEISINGER, MOMBOISSE, HOOD & DYAR  
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI 

4



ABSTAIN:          COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Marnie Waffle, Senior Planner provided the Board an update on the Historic Context 
Statement update project and Municipal Code amendment project. Marc Wiener, 
Planning Director added Marnie Waffle will be the department/staff liaison on Historic 
properties.  

 
H. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 N/A  
 
I.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Chair Dyar noted he attended a meeting with City officials to discuss the City’s 
Conservation District and the possibility of implementing more guidelines. 

 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned 
at 5:16 p.m. 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  
 

 
 ATTEST: 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Erik Dyar, Chair 
 

 

 

5



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

April 16, 2018 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 

From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 

Submitted by: Catherine Tarone, Assistant Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-174) for an addition to a historic 

residence located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District 
and consideration of the adoption of a resolution to add a historic 
resource to the Carmel Historic Register. 

 
 
Application: DS 17-174 (Munro) APN:  010-267-004 
Block:   S Lot:  13 & 15 
Location: Carmelo St., 2 NW of 7th Ave. 
Applicant:  Karen Munro Property Owners:  Scott and Karen Munro 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The applicant is proposing a 740-square-foot, single-story addition consisting of a 400-square-
foot garage and a 340-square-foot new bedroom and bathroom. A 360-square-foot open 
rooftop deck and gas fire pit are proposed above the new addition accessed from new French 
doors at the living room. All exterior modifications would be on the rear (west) elevation. The 
applicant is also requesting that the Historic Resources Board adopt a resolution to add the 
residence to the City’s Historic Register and allow the property to maintain its existing 
nonconforming site coverage per the Municipal Code's benefits available to properties listed on 
the Historic Register. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Historic Resources Board issue a Determination of Consistency with 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards, add the property to the City’s Historic Register, and 
approve the applicant’s request to exceed the site coverage allowance.  
 
 

6



STAFF ANALYSIS  
 
Previous Historic Resource Board and Planning Commission Hearings:  The applicant 
presented the project to the Board on February 26, 2018, and the Board issued a Determination 
of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards subject to specific 
recommendations. On March 14, 2018 the Planning Commission considered the proposal, and 
continued the application, providing direction to the applicant to significantly reduce the area 
of the rooftop deck. This project has been referred back to the Historic Resources Board as the 
applicant has altered the deck's design substantially from the Board's original approval. The 
attorney representing the neighboring property owners to the west and to the south has 
submitted a letter to the Board included as Attachment G. 
 
Additionally, it is the Board's purview to evaluate whether the residence qualifies to be added 
to the Historic Register and whether the site coverage waiver may be applied to this property 
which exceeds the amount allowed by approximately 712 square feet.  The following are 
recommendations made by the Historic Resources Board as well as the Planning Commission 
and a staff analysis of how the applicant has revised the design to comply with these 
recommendations. 
 
1. Historic Resource Board Condition of Approval:  The applicant shall shift the garage south a 

minimum of one foot in order to incorporate a wall reveal into the design such that the front 
of the garage on the north elevation will no longer be on the same wall plane as the original 
historic upper- and lower-floor. 
 
Staff Analysis:  The applicant has complied with this condition and has incorporated a wall 
reveal between the historic residence and the addition on the north elevation shown on 
sheets A1.1 and A3.1 of the plans.   

 
2. Planning Commission Recommendation:  The rooftop deck shall be redesigned to be 

sensitive to the neighborhood and to mitigate privacy and view impacts to neighboring 
properties. Significantly reduce the deck such that it is subordinate to the historic residence, 
is not the largest feature of the residence and does not marginalize the historic, elevated 
south patio.  Design the rooftop deck to make a connection, architecturally, with the existing 
historic structure. Design the deck to avoid cutting any of the limbs on the existing oak tree.  
The applicant is encouraged to use wood railings around the upper-level deck. The pickets of 
the railings should be differentiated from the historic railings at the original balcony either in 
the size or spacing of the pickets. 

7



 
Staff Analysis:  The proposed rooftop deck was reduced by 48% from 740 square feet to 360 
square feet and now measures 21'-10.5" in width and 16.5' in length.  The deck railing was 
stepped back from the edge of the flat roof by 4' on the west (rear) elevation and 14'-7.5" on 
the south (side) elevation. The revised deck size responds to the Planning Commission's 
recommendation to reduce privacy impacts to neighbors and to keep the deck subordinate to 
the historic residence. In staff’s opinion, the size of the rooftop deck is now subordinate to the 
existing, 550-square-foot, historic raised patio on the south elevation of the residence. Staff 
notes that it is not in the purview of the Historic Resources Board to evaluate privacy impacts 
and that privacy and views will be considered at the subsequent Planning Commission meeting. 
The applicant has incorporated wood railings into the design on the north elevation, but has 
proposed a stucco wall on the west and south elevations where privacy impacts were identified 
by the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission did not require solid railing on the north 
and west elevations, but it was the applicant’s choice of material. The City’s historic consultant, 
Kent Seavey, is recommending that the pickets of the railing be differentiated from the historic 
railing by rotating the pickets 45 degrees such that the corner of each picket faces forward.  The 
solid stucco parapet wall on the west elevation will be 4 feet in height, rising to 6 feet at the 
proposed gas fire pit mounted against the wall.  The wall will be stepped back from the roof 
edge by 4 feet on the west elevation and more than 14 feet on the south elevation, helping to 
break up the wall line.  The Board should decide if the proposed railings are compatible with 
the historic residence. 
 
French doors will be added on the second floor at the living room, however, this requires the 
removal of a 3-foot-wide by 4.5-foot-tall, single-pane, original window on the rear west 
elevation shown on sheet A3 of the plans and in Attachment A. Since this window is at the rear 
of the property and on an altered secondary elevation, staff does not see an issue with its 
removal. Additionally, the small existing deck with historic wood railing will no longer access 
the deck and will remain unaltered.   
 
3. Planning Commission Recommendation:  Reduce the number of lights at the deck. 

 
Staff Analysis:  The applicant has reduced the number of light fixtures at the deck. Previously, 
the applicant had proposed, four low-mounted wall lights, while the revised plans now propose 
two down-lit, shielded, 25-watt-equivalent light fixtures located on either side of the French 
doors. In staff's opinion, the applicant has complied with the requirement to reduce the lighting 
at the deck and the proposed lighting is compatible with the addition and the City’s lighting 
requirements.  

8



Carmel Register of Historic Resources:  The Carmel Municipal Code requires that the City 
maintain a Register of Historic Resources designated by the City for public recognition and 
benefits. Only identified historic resources included in the Carmel Inventory are eligible for 
listing on the Register. Per CMC 17.32.040.C, the resource should be representative of at least 
one theme included in the Historic Context Statement; shall retain substantial integrity; should 
be a minimum of 50 years of age and shall meet at least one of the four criteria for listing in the 
California Register at a regional or local level of significance. This resource is over 50 years of 
age and meets criteria number 3 for architecture which, "Embodies the distinctive 
characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of a 
master, an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values." 
 
The "John B. Adams House" was added to the Carmel Inventory in 2004.  Resources identified 
as significant at a local or regional level shall be eligible for listing in the Register at the request 
of the property owner and upon approval by the Historic Resources Board.  Staff has included 
the Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) Form 523A for this property as Attachment C. If 
the Board is supportive of adding this property to the Register, staff has included a draft 
resolution for the Carmel Register as Attachment F. 
 
Benefits Available to Historic Resources Listed on the Register:  If the Board decides to add the 
property to the City’s Historic Register, the property would be eligible for additional incentives.  
One such incentive is delineated by CMC 17.32.100, which states, “Existing structural 
nonconformities associated with a historic resource listed on the register (e.g., setback 
encroachments, excess height or insufficient parking, etc.) that are essential to maintaining the 
integrity of the resource shall be treated as conforming…in the review of maintenance, repair, 
alterations and additions.  Design nonconformities shall be expanded or created only when this 
is found necessary to achieve consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.” 
 
This property’s existing site coverage is nonconforming as it totals 2,224 square feet and 
includes 650 square feet of existing walkways (recently replaced with permeable brick), a 91-
square-foot entryway landing, a 322 square-foot impervious south patio, a 501-square-foot 
concrete driveway extending to the rear of the property, and a 660-square-foot concrete 
driveway turning pad. Pursuant to CMC 17.10.030.C.2.b, in order to add the proposed 740-
square-foot addition, the applicant must bring the site coverage into compliance by removing 
1,098 square feet of site coverage. The applicant is proposing to convert the concrete driveway 
to a permeable tire track driveway and removed a portion of the driveway turning pad, 
reducing site coverage by 386 square feet. However, the property still exceeds the allowed site 
coverage by 712 square feet. 

9



To locate the garage and addition at the back of the property, on a secondary elevation, the 
maintenance of the property’s existing driveway and turning pad is necessary. Furthermore, the 
322-square-foot impervious patio and 650 square feet of brick walkways are described in the 
property's DPR 523A Form and are part of the historic fabric of the site. In order to bring the 
property into compliance, all walkways plus 62 additional square feet of site coverage would 
need to be removed. In staff's opinion, the existing walkways are part of the context of the 
historic residence and necessary to provide access to the residence. Staff recommends that the 
Historic Resources Board grant an exception to the site coverage allowance for this property 
which would limit the maximum site coverage to 1,838 square feet, or 712 square feet in excess 
of the amount allowed by the Municipal Code. 
 
Alternatives:  If the Board determines that the current design for the deck railing is inconsistent 
with the Secretary of the Interior Standards, the Board may continue the application or approve 
the project with recommendations for changes, including a different material for the deck 
railing.  If the Board supports the deck's design but determines that the property does not meet 
the criteria for the application of the waiver for the property's site coverage, the Board may 
deny the applicant's request for a site coverage waiver but issue a Determination of 
Consistency for the deck railing revision.    
 
Environmental Review: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  If the project, as conditioned by the Board, is consistent 
with the Standards, potential historic resource impacts under CEQA do not require further 
analysis and the proposed project would be Categorically Exempt from CEQA requirements, 
pursuant to Section 15331 – Historic Resources Restoration/Rehabilitation. 
 
The proposed modifications to the historic resource known as the “The John B. Adams House" 
was reviewed by the City’s Historic Preservation Consultant and a Phase II Historic Assessment 
was prepared (refer to Attachment D). The Assessment analyzed the proposed modifications 
based on the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties and 
concluded that the proposed project is consistent with the Secretary’s Standards. Modifications 
to a historic resource that are determined to be consistent with the Secretary’s Standards do 
not require further California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review for impacts to historic 
resources. Staff recommends that the project be found consistent with the Secretary’s 
Standards. 
 
 

10



ATTACHMENTS: 
• Attachment A - Site Photographs 
• Attachment B – PC Amended Recommendations 
• Attachment C – DPR 523A Form 
• Attachment D – Phase II Historic Assessment 
• Attachment E – Secretary of the Interior's Standards 
• Attachment F – Resolution for Carmel Register 
• Attachment G – Letter from Attorney 
• Attachment H – Revised Plans 

11



Munro Residence Site Photographs with Revised Deck Railing 

 

East Front Elevation (No Changes Proposed to Front) 

 

North Side Elevation 

12



 

North Side Elevation and Revised Deck Staking and Flagging 

 

Rear West Elevation and Revised Staking and Flagging for the Deck 

13



 

South Side Elevation of Revised Deck 

 

View of the Revised Deck taken from the small upper-floor deck immediately adjacent 

14



 

 

Rear West Elevation and Area of Addition 

  

Small original 
deck and railing 
to remain. 

Original window 
to be replaced 
with French 
Doors 

15



 

Existing cement driveway to be replaced with a brick, tire track, sand-set paver driveway 

 

Sand set brick walkways along the east (front) of the residence 

16



 

Sand set brick walkways along the east (front) of the residence 

 

Sand set brick walkways along the south (side) of the residence 

17



 
Recommendations/Draft Conditions 

Amended by PC 3/14/18 
No.  
1. Tree Density. The applicant shall plant one lower-canopy tree on the property.  

2. Size of the Deck, Planning Commission Recommendations:  The rooftop deck shall be 
redesigned to be sensitive to the neighborhood and to mitigate privacy and view impacts 
to neighboring properties. Significantly reduce the deck such that it is subordinate to the 
historic residence, is not the largest feature of the residence and does not marginalize 
the historic, elevated south patio.  Design the rooftop deck to make a connection, 
architecturally, with the existing historic structure. Design the deck to avoid cutting any 
of the limbs on the existing oak tree.  Staff's original recommendation was to shift the 
deck railings a minimum of 2 feet from the edge of the building on each side; however, 
in light of the Planning Commission's feedback, the railing may need to be moved back 
farther or configured differently to achieve the intent of the Planning Commission's 
recommendations. 

3. Shed Removal. The applicant shall remove the existing 120-square-foot shed from the 
rear southwest yard of the property in order to construct the addition. 

4. Historic Resource Board Condition of Approval:  The applicant shall shift the garage 
south a minimum of 1 foot in order to incorporate a wall reveal into the design such that 
the front of the garage on the north elevation will no longer be on the same wall plane 
as the original historic upper- and lower-floor 

5. Historic Resource Board Recommendation:   The applicant is encouraged to use wood 
railings around the upper-level deck.  The pickets of the railing should be differentiated 
from the historic railings at the original balcony either in the size or spacing of the 
pickets. 

7. Deck Lighting: Reduce the number of lights at the deck. 

 

18



19

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C - DPR 523 Form



20



21



22

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment D - Phase II Assessment



23



24



25



26

mwiener
Typewritten Text



27



SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

 
1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 

requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site 
and environment." 

 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The 

removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize 
a property shall be avoided." 

 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken."  

 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic 

significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved."  
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the 

severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials.  Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated 
by documentary, physical, and pictorial evidence." 

 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 

 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 

preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 

historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment." 

 
10.  "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 

such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired." 

 

28

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment E - Secretary's Standards



Attachment F – Resolution of Historic Register 
 
Return to: 
Carmel City Hall 
Post Office Box CC 
Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93921 
Attention: Catherine Tarone, Assistant Planner 

 
 

RESOLUTION QUALIFYING A HISTORIC RESOURCE FOR  
LISTING ON THE CARMEL REGISTER 

 
The subject property is designated a Historical Resource per Resolution recorded with the Monterey 
County Recorder on April 16, 2018  (Document No. ___ ). This Resolution qualifies the subject resource 
to be placed on the Carmel Register which will allow the property owner to take advantage of a 
preservation incentive program to include an exemption for existing structural nonconformities 
associated with a historic resource listed on the register that are essential to maintaining the integrity of 
the resource. 
 
This Resolution is being recorded pursuant to section 5029(b) of the California Public Resources Code 
that requires the City to record all historic resource determinations. This action also is taken in 
furtherance of the Local Coastal Program certified by the California Coastal Commission and 
implemented by City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Ordinances No. 2004-01 and 2004-02. 
 
As stated in the Carmel Municipal Code Section 17.32.040.C, the resource should be representative of at 
least one theme include in the Historic Context Statement; shall retain substantial integrity; should be a 
minimum of 50 years of age and shall meet at least one of the four criteria for listing in the California 
Register at a national or Statewide level of significance (primary resource) or at a regional or local level 
of significance (local resource) per CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a)(3). The four criteria for listing are 
as follows: (1) Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns 
of local or regional history or the cultural heritage of California or the United States; (2) Is associated 
with the lives of persons important to local, California or national history; (3) Embodies the distinctive 
characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of a master, 
an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values; or (4) Has yielded, or has the potential 
to yield, information important to the prehistory or history of the local area, California or the nation. 
This resource is over 50 years of age and meets criteria No. 3. 

 
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 010-267-004 
Block: S   Lot(s): 13 & 15 
Current Owner:  Scott and Karen Munro 
Street Location: Carmelo St., 2 NW of 7th Ave. 

 
It is the purpose of this Resolution to alert the owner, the successors and assigns to the existence of an 
historic resource on the property. This historic resource is protected under laws of the State of California 
and of the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea including the California Coastal Act, the California Public Resources 
Code, the Carmel-by-the-Sea Municipal Code and the Local Coastal Program.  
 
Attachment A – Property Legal Description (1 page)  Attachment B – DPR Form 523 (3 pages) 
 
Certified by: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Catherine Tarone 

29



30

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment G - Neighbor Attorney Letter



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



1
7
'
-
2
"
±

12'-10"±

3'-0" SETBACK

STRUCTURE LESS THAN 15'-0" IN HEIGHT

15'-0"

SETBACK

3
'
-
0

"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
'
-
0

"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

32" pine

20" oak (twin)

27" oak

16" magnolia

56" oak

PERVIOUS WALK

g

a

t

e

CONCRETE WALL

C
A

R
M

E
L

O
 
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

91.1

92.5

93.0

93.9

91.9

98.8

101.9

99.2

98.8

EXISTING HOUSE

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G

H
O

U
S

E

1

0

0

9

5

9
5

9
0

9

0

8

9

9
0

9

5

1

0

0

102

9

7

(100.00')

(100.00')

(
1

0
0

.
0

0
'
)

(
1

0
0

.
0

0
'
)

NEW

PERVIOUS

PAVERS

PERVIOUS WALK

ENTRY

ROCK RET. WALL

ROCK RET. WALL

gate

3
'
-
0

"
 
H

.
 
S

T
U

C
C

O
 
W

A
L

L

P
E

R
V

I
O

U
S

 
W

A
L
K

WATER METER

6'-0" H. GRAPE-STAKE

FENCE

TEMPORARY

EXISTING

SHED

A
S

P
H

A
L

T
 
B

E
R

M

A
S

P
H

A
L

T
 
B

E
R

M

REMOVE CONCRETE

DRIVEWAY. INSTALL

PERVIOUS PAVERS

WITH HERRINGBONE

PATTERN

6
'
-
0

"
 
H

.
 
G

R
A

P
E

-
S

T
A

K
E

F
E

N
C

E

6'-0" H. GRAPE-STAKE FENCE

3
'
-
0

"
 
H

.
 
S

T
U

C
C

O
 
W

A
L

L

12" WIDE CONCRETE

ACCENT BLOCK AT

10'-0" O.C.

TAN

BARK

EXISTING

PATIO

DASHED LINE

INDICATES DECK

LOCATION

ORNAMENTAL

STRAWBERRIES

16'-10"±

DECK

LOCATION

3
1
'
-
3
"
±

D
E

C
K

 
L

O
C

A
T

I
O

N

SCALE: 1" = 10'-0"

1.  SURFACE WATER WILL DRAIN AWAY FROM EACH STRUCTURE ON THE LOT.

2.  INSTALL SEDIMENT LOGS AROUND CONSTRUCTION AREA TO KEEP DEBRIS

    ON PROPERTY.

3.  PLACE GRAVEL BAGS AROUND NEARBY, DOWN-STREAM OF STORM INLET(S)

    DURING CONSTRUCTION.

4.  DURING CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE COUNTY

    RIGHT-OF-WAY (STREET/SIDEWALK) FREE FROM DEBRIS AND DIRT.

5.  ALL STRUCTURAL FILL TO BE COMPACTED TO 90 PERCENT RELATIVE

    COMPACTION.  ALL ROADWAY FILL SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 90 PERCENT

    RELATIVE COMPACTION EXCEPT THE UPPER 12 INCHES OF FINISHED SOIL,

    SUBGRADE AND BASEROCK SHALL BE 95% RELATIVE COMPACTION.

6.  GRADING QUANTITIES:  EXCAVATION = 80 CY    FILL = 75 CY

7.  EXCESS EXCAVATION TO BE DEPOSITED ON SITE.  DEPOSITED MATERIAL

    SHALL NOT EXCEED 12 INCHES IN DEPTH UNLESS COMPACTION TESTED TO

    VERIFY A MINIMUM COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS PER NOTE # 5.

8.  THE DRIVEWAY EXISTS AND WILL REMAIN UNCHANGED. THE SLOPE DOES

     NOT EXCEED 15 PERCENT.

9.  THE GRADE ADJACENT TO ALL STRUCTURES SHALL BE SLOPED A

     MINIMUM OF 5 PERCENT AWAY FROM THE FOUNDATION FOR A MINIMUM

     HORIZONTAL DISTANCE OF 10 FEET.

10.  ALL GRADING SHALL COMPLY WITH THE COUNTY OF MONTEREY GRADING

    ORDINANCE.

IF, DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION, CULTURAL, ARCHAEOLOGICAL,

HISTORICAL OR PALEONTOLOGICAL RESOURCES ARE UNCOVERED AT THE SITE,

WORK SHALL BE HALTED IMMEDIATELY WITHIN 50 METERS OF THE FIND UNTIL A

QUALIFIED PROFESSIONAL ARCHAEOLOGIST CAN EVALUATE IT. MONTEREY

COUNT RMA - PLANNING AND A QUALIFIED ARCHAEOLOGIST SHALL BE

IMMEDIATELY CONTACTED BY THE RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL PRESENT ON-SITE.

WHEN CONTACTED, THE PROJECT PLANNER AND THE ARCHAEOLOGIST SHALL

IMMEDIATELY VISIT THE SITE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF THE RESOURCES

AND TO DEVELOP PROPER MITIGATION MEASURES REQUIRED FOR RECOVERY.

1)   THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER (SOIL SURVEYS GROUP, INC.) SHOULD

     BE RETAINED TO REVIEW THE BUILDING AND SITE GRADING PLANS

     FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THIS REPORT AND MAY PROVIDE SPECIFIC

     RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SURFACE DRAINAGE.

2)   ALL EARTHWORK AND FOUNDATION OPERATIONS ON-SITE TO BE

     PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GEOTECHNICAL

     INVESTIGATION REPORT..

3)   THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER SHOULD BE NOTIFIED AT LEAST FIVE

      (5) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO ANY SITE CLEARING OR OTHER

      EARTHWORK OPERATIONS.

4)   PRIOR TO GRADING, THE AREAS TO BE DEVELOPED FOR STRUCTURES,

     PAVEMENTS AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, SHOULD BE STRIPPED OF ANY

     VEGETATION AND CLEARED OF ANY SURFACE OR SUBSURFACE

     OBSTRUCTIONS, INCLUDING ANY EXISTING FOUNDATIONS, UTILITY LINES

     BASEMENTS, SEPTIC TANKS, PAVEMENTS, STOCKPILED FILLS, AND

     MISCELLANEOUS DEBRIS.

5)   ALL PIPELINES ENCOUNTERED DURING GRADING SHOULD BE RELOCATED

     AS NECESSARY TO BE COMPLETELY REMOVED FROM CONSTRUCTION AREAS

     OR BE CAPPED AND PLUGGED.

6)   ANY WELLS ENCOUNTERED SHALL BE CAPPED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SANTA CRUZ

     COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS. THE STRENGTH OF THE

     CAP SHALL BE AT LEAST EQUAL TO ADJACENT SOIL AND SHALL NOT BE

     LOCATED WITHIN 5 FEET OF ANY STRUCTURAL ELEMENT.

7)   SURFACE VEGETATION AND ORGANICALLY CONTAMINATED TOPSOIL SHOULD BE

     REMOVED FROM AREAS TO BE GRADED. THE REQUIRED DEPTH OF STRIPPING

WILL VARY WITH THE TIME OF YEAR THE WORK IS DONE AND MUST BE OBSERVED BY

     THE GEOTECHNICAL CONSULTANT.

8)   HOLES RESULTING FROM THE REMOVAL OF BURIED OBSTRUCTIONS THAT 

EXTEND BELOW FINISHED SITE GRADES SHOULD BE BACKFILLED WITH COMPACTED

ENGINEERED FILL.

9)   AFTER THE EARTHWORK OPERATIONS HAVE BEEN COMPLETED AND THE

GEOTECHNICAL  ENGINEER HAS FINISHED HIS OBSERVATION OF THE WORK, NO

FURTHER EARTHWORK OPERATIONS SHALL BE PERFORMED EXCEPT WITH THE

APPROVAL OF AND UNDER THE OBSERVATION OF THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER.

16.

15.

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

2. 

3. 

4. 

1.

WHEN WINTER GRADING OPERATIONS TAKE PLACE, THE FOLLOWING MEASURES

ARE REQUIRED TO MITIGATE ACCELERATED EROSION:

1. VEGETATION REMOVAL BETWEEN OCTOBER 15 AND APRIL 15 SHALL NOT

PRECEDE SUBSEQUENT GRADING OR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES BY MORE THAN

15 DAYS.  DURING THIS PERIOD, EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES

SHALL BE IN PLACE.

2. BETWEEN OCTOBER 15 AND APRIL 15, DISTURBED SURFACES NOT INVOLVED

IN THE IMMEDIATE OPERATIONS MUST BE PROTECTED BY MULCHING AND/OR

OTHER EFFECTIVE MEANS OF SOIL PROTECTION.

3. RUN-OFF FROM THE SITE SHALL BE DETAINED OF FILTERED BY BERMS,

VEGETATED FILTER STRIPS AND/OR CATCH BASINS TO PREVENT THE ESCAPE OF

SEDIMENT FROM THE DISTURBED AREA OR SITE.  THESE DRAINAGE CONTROL

MEASURES MUST BE MAINTAINED BY THE CONTRACTOR AS NECESSARY TO

ACHIEVE THEIR PURPOSE THROUGHOUT THE LIFE OF THE PROJECT.

4. EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE IN PLACE AT THE

END OF EACH DAY'S WORK.

5. THE GRADING INSPECTOR MAY STOP OPERATIONS DURING PERIODS OF

INCLEMENT WEATHER IF EROSION PROBLEMS ARE NOT BEING CONTROLLED

ADEQUATELY.

ALL GRADING SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH CITY OF CARMEL GRADING

ORDINANCE  & EROSION CONTROL ORDINANCE.

GROUND SHALL BE PREPARED TO RECEIVE FILL BY REMOVING

VEGETATION, TRASH, ETC. NO VEGETATIVE NOR OTHER

DELETERIOUS MATERIALS SHALL BE USED IN ANY ENGINEERED FILL.

ALL SURFACES EXPOSED OR THAT MAY BE EXPOSED DURING GRADING

ACTIVITIES SHALL BE PREPARED AND MAINTAINED THROUGH THE

LENGTH OF THE PROJECT TO PROTECT AGAINST EROSION.

AT ALL TIMES DURING CONSTRUCTION AND UNTIL FINAL COMPLETION, THE

CONTRACTOR, WHEN HE OR HIS SUBCONTRACTORS ARE OPERATING

EQUIPMENT ON THE SITE, SHALL PREVENT THE FORMATION OF AIRBORNE

DUST NUISANCE BY WATERING AND TREATING THE SITE OF THE WORK IN

SUCH A MANNER THAT WILL CONFINE DUST PARTICLES TO THE IMMEDIATE

SURFACE OF THE WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

ANY DAMAGE DONE BY DUST FROM SUBCONTRACTORS.

TOE OF FILLS ON SLOPES STEEPER THAN 1 UNIT VERTICAL IN 5

UNITS HORIZONTAL SHALL BE KEYED WITH A BENCH MINIMUM

10 FEET WIDE AND 2 FEET DEEP BACK SLOPED 2%.

ALL GRADED AREAS SHALL BE PLANTED AND MAINTAINED AS

REQUIRED BY CITY OF CARMEL BUILDING DEPARTMENT. CUT AND FILL

SLOPES SHALL BE CULTIVATED TO A DEPTH OF APPROXIMATELY 3

INCHES.  SEED WITH RYE GRASS, 3/4 LB. PER 100 SQ. FT. OF AREA.

COVER WITH STRAW, 4 TONS PER ACRE.

CUT AND FILL SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 2 HORIZONTAL

TO 1 VERTICAL.

MAINTAIN DUST CONTROL AT ALL TIMES.  NO POTABLE WATER

SHALL BE USED FOR DUST CONTROL UNLESS SECONDARY WATER

IS NOT READILY AVAILABLE.

ALL FILL AREAS SHALL BE COMPACTED TO MINIMUM 90 PERCENT

RELATIVE COMPACTION, BASED ON ASTM TEST D1557. FILL SHALL BE

PLACED IN LIFTS NOT EXCEEDING 8 INCHES IN DEPTH.

SLOPE ALL GROUND AWAY FROM BUILDINGS AT MINIMUM 5 % FOR

A MINIMUM DISTANCE OF 10 FEET.

CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT EROSION AND SEDIMENT ESCAPING

FROM SITE AS REQUIRED BY CITY OF CARMEL EROSION CONTROL

ORDINANCE.

EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE IN PLACE AT THE END

OF EACH DAY'S WORK BETWEEN OCTOBER 15 AND APRIL 15.

ESTIMATED EXCAVATION:  CUT = 80 CY,  FILL = 75 CY

CONTOUR ELEVATION DATUM IS APPROXIMATE U.S.G.S.

A COPY OF ALL COMPACTION TESTS AND FINAL GRADING REPORTS

SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY OF CARMEL PRIOR TO

REQUESTING A FINAL GRADING OR FOOTING INSPECTION.

NO CUT OR FILL SHALL BE WITHIN 3 FEET OF ALL PROPERTY LINES

EXCEPT FOR DRIVEWAY ACCESS PURPOSES.

STARTING DATE:  4.1.2018  COMPLETION DATE:  10.1.2018

720 SF ADDITION TO EXISTING RESIDENCE.DESCRIPTION:

ENERGY CODE
:2016 C.E.C.

KAREN & SCOTT MUNRO

2 NW OF 7TH ON CARMELO

CARMEL, CA 93921

JURISDICTION:

BUILDING CODE:

OCCUPANCY TYPES:

CONSTRUCTION TYPE:

CITY OF CARMEL

V-B

:2016 C.P.C.
PLUMBING

ELECTRICAL
:2016 C.E.C.

BUILDING

MECHANICAL

ZONING: R-1

FIRE

:2016 C.B.C.

:2016 C.M.C.

:2016 C.F.C.

ASSESSORS PARCEL NO: 010-267-004

PROPERTY OWNER:

R3 - RESIDENTIAL 

RESIDENTIAL
:2016 C.E.C.

TREE REMOVAL:

AREA OF DISTURBANCE:

NONE

740 SF

U - GARAGE

BUILDING AREAS:

LOT AREA:

10,000 SF

CALGREEN
:2016 C.G.C.

THE EXISTING GRADES ADJACENT TO THE EXISTING RESIDENCE SHALL

BE MAINTAINED TO DIRECT WATER AWAY FROM THE BUILDNG FOUNDATION.

THE FINAL GRADING OF THE SITE SHALL BE CONDUCTED IN A MANNER TO

ENSURE THAT ALL SURFACE DRAINAGE UPHILL FROM THE RESIDNECE

(INCLUDING THE FLOW FROM THE DRIVEWAY) ARE DIRECTED IN SWALES

AROUND THE STRUCTURE.

17.

(E) RESIDENCE

UPPER LEVEL

MAIN LEVEL

LOWER LEVEL

TOTAL

  542 SF

1,494 SF

   523 SF

2,559 SF

NEW ADDITION

TOTAL SF WITH ADDITION

(BASE FLOOR AREA ALLOWED - 3,300 S.F.)

   740 SF

3,299 SF

EXISTING WALLS:

2ND LEVEL

1ST LEVEL

LOWER LEVEL

REMOVED WALLS

LOWER LEVEL

NEW WALLS

REMODEL LOWER LEVEL

ADDITION LOWER LEVEL

EVALUATION    (REMOVED + NEW) / EXISTING WALLS  = 0.44  OR 44%  < 50%

122.50 LF:

284.93 LF

 99.45 LF

34.78 LF

51.51 LF

136.85 LF

0 20108642

SCALE BAR 1:10

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

12/21/17

1

2

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

02/23/18

2

2

2

2

2

SITE COVERAGE CALCULATION

PERVIOUS

IMPERVIOUS

EXISTING BUILDING FOOTPRINT

NEW ADDITION FOOTPRINT

TOTAL

 7,308 SF

    458 SF (MAX ALLOWED 3,300 SF x 22% = 726 SF)

 1,494 SF

    740 SF

10,000 SF

3

3

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/04/18

3

4

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

04/02/18

4

4

4

EXISTING SITE COVERAGE

IMPERVIOUS WALKWAYS

IMPERVIOUS DRIVEWAY

IMPERVIOUS DRIVEWAY TURNAROUND

IMPERVIOUS PATIO

IMPERVIOUS ENTRY WAY

PERVIOUS LANDSCAPING

TOTAL

   650 SF

   501 SF

   660 SF

   322 SF

     91 SF

6,282 SF

8,506 SF

PROPOSED SITE COVERAGE

PERVIOUS WALKWAYS

PERVIOUS PAVER TIRE TRACKS

PERVIOUS ORNAMENTAL PLANTING AT DRIVEWAY

IMPERVIOUS DRIVEWAY (CONCRETE BLOCKS)

PERVIOUS DRIVEWAY TURNAROUND

PERVIOUS TAN BARK (AT ENTRY LOWER LEVEL)

IMPERVIOUS PATIO

IMPERVIOUS ENTRY WAY

PERVIOUS LANDSCAPING

TOTAL

   650 SF

   200 SF

   256 SF

     45 SF

   530 SF

   130 SF

   322 SF

     91 SF

5,542 SF

7,766 SF

4

66



37'-0"

2'-0"2'-10"1'-6"4'-0"6'-0"4'-6"6'-6"4'-0"3'-0"

1
'
-
9

"

1
6

'
-
0

"
2

'
-
3

"

2
0

'
-
0

"

1
'
-
6

"
2

'
-
6

"
7

'
-
8

"

1
1

"

2
'
-
0

"
3

'
-
1

1
"

2
1

'
-
1

1
"

10'-5"

3
'
-
1

0
"

4
'
-
9

"

1'-6"

5
'
-
3

"

1
1

"

8'-0"x6'-8"

SLIDER

4'-3"

6'-7" 3'-5"

3
'
-
5

"

3'-8"

10"

1
'
-
6

"

3
'
-
9

"

2'-8"

BUILT IN

CABINETS

BUILT IN

CABINETS

BUILT IN

CABINETS

INFILL

EXISTING

WINDOW

2
'
-
5

"

1
'
-
0

"

1
'
-
0

"
1

'
-
0

"

GARAGE

BEDROOM1

BATHROOM

BEDROOM2

GREAT

ROOM

BATHROOM

POWDER

ROOM

1
5

'
-
1

0
"

3
'
-
3

"
3

'
-
9

"

5
'
-
0

1

2

"

6'-3

1

2

"

16'-1"

19'-6

1

2

"

A

B B B B

103

102

101

106105

104

1'-0"

REMOVE AND

DISPOSE OF

WINDOW

REMOVE AND

DISPOSE OF

PORTION OF

WALL

3
'
-
9

"
3

'
-
9

"
5

'
-
3

"
1

'
-
1

1
"

4'-3"

6'-7" 3'-5"

3
'
-
5

"

3'-8"

10"

1
'
-
6

"

3
'
-
9

"

1
'
-
0

"
1

'
-
0

"

1
5

'
-
1

0
"

3
'
-
3

"
3

'
-
9

"

5
'
-
0

1

2

"

16'-1"

19'-6

1

2

"

6'-3

1

2

"

5'-10"

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 84321

SCALE BAR 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 84321

SCALE BAR 1/4" = 1'-0"

1

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

12/21/17

67



DECK

OUTDOOR

PATIO

BEDROOM

KITCHEN

DINING

LIVING

EXISTING

DECK

BATHROOM

ROOF

3" ROOF

DRAIN

EXTERIOR

RATED GAS

FIRE PIT

BUILT IN

BENCH

1 4

"
 
P

E
R

 
1

2
"

S
L

O
P

E

1

4

" PER 12"

SLOPE

1 4

"
 
P

E
R

 
1

2
"

S
L

O
P

E

1

4

" PER 12"

SLOPE

EXTERIOR

DECK LIGHT

FIXTURE

BUILT-IN

STORAGE

CABINET

N
E

W
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

C
E

DECORATIVE

RAILING

1

4

" PER 12"

SLOPE

BUILT-IN

STORAGE

CABINET

4
'
-
0

"
1

2
'
-
0

"
4

'
-
0

"

3" ROOF

DRAIN

1

4

"
 
P

E
R

 
1

2
"

S
L

O
P

E

1

4

"
 
P

E
R

 
1

2
"

S
L

O
P

E

21'-10

1

2

"14'-7

1

2

"

107

BUILT IN

BENCH

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 84321

SCALE BAR 1/4" = 1'-0"

DECK FINISH

CUT EDGE TIERRA HIGH FIRED

HANDCRAFTED TERRA COTTA

FLOOR TILE

1

1

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

12/21/17

EXTERIOR LIGHTING LIMITED TO NO MORE

THAN 25 WATTS ( INCANDESCENT EQUIVALENT;

i.e. APPROXIMATELY 225 LUMENS

4

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

04/02/18

4

4

PROPOSED DECK HAS BEEN REDUCED FROM

740 SF TO 360 SF.  THIS IS A 48% REDUCTION.

68



2
0
'
-
2
"
±
 
R
I
D
G
E
 
H
E
I
G
H
T

2
6

'
-
4

"
 
P

L
A

T
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

1
7

'
-
6

"
 
P

L
A

T
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

3
0
'
-
1
"
±

2
0
'
-
2
"
±
 
R
I
D
G
E
 
H
E
I
G
H
T

2
6

'
-
4

"
 
P

L
A

T
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

1
7

'
-
6

"
 
P

L
A

T
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

3
0
'
-
1
"
±

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 84321

SCALE BAR 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 84321

SCALE BAR 1/4" = 1'-0"

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 84321

SCALE BAR 1/4" = 1'-0"

1

1

1

1

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

12/21/17

69



EXISTING RESIDENCE NEW ADDITION

1
1

'
-
0

"
 
H

E
I
G

H
T

 
O

F
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

1
'
-
6

"

(3) COAT CEM.

PLAS. o/ 1/2"

PLYWD. o/ 2

LAYERS GRADE 'D'

BUILDING PAPER.

WOOD TRELLIS

BARNWOOD GRAY

STAIN

WINDOW

POP OUT

OVERHEAD

GARAGE WOOD

DOOR

'JUSTICE DESIGN'

EXTERIOR LIGHT

FIXTURE EACH

SIDE OF DOOR

DECORATIVE

WOOD HEADER

BARNWOOD GRAY

STAIN

DECORATIVE

RAILING. PICKETS

TO BE 3" APART

AND TURN 45°.

4'-0"

1
3

'
-
8

"
 
H

E
I
G

H
T

 
O

F
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

'THE HOME

LIGHTER'

HL-C-DS-TB9-70 70

SERIES DARK SKY

EXTERIOR LIGHT

FIXTURE EACH

SIDE OF DOOR.

GU24 9W CFL

BULB

ROOF PARAPET

LOWERED AT

CORNER TO

ACCOMMODATE

EXISTING OAK

TREE.

4

5

°

0

'

45° SITE LINE

FROM 6'-0" A.F.F.

AT DECK

12'-2" SITE LINE

EXISTING 6'-0"

FENCE

1
3

'
-
8

"
 
H

E
I
G

H
T

 
O

F
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

(3) COAT CEM.

PLAS. o/ 1/2"

PLYWD. o/ 2

LAYERS GRADE 'D'

BUILDING PAPER.

WOOD TRELLIS

BARNWOOD GRAY

STAIN

DECORATIVE

WOOD HEADER

BARNWOOD GRAY

STAIN

WINDOW POP OUT

STRUCTURE

WOOD TRELLIS

BARNWOOD GRAY

STAIN

NEW ADDITION

ASPHALT SHINGLE

ROOF

REMOVE WINDOW

AND REPLACE

WITH FRENCH

DOORS

1
5

'
-
8

"

1
1

'
-
0

"

'THE HOME

LIGHTER'

HL-C-DS-TB9-70 70

SERIES DARK SKY

EXTERIOR LIGHT

FIXTURE EACH

SIDE OF DOOR.

GU24 9W CFL

BULB

4

5

°

0

'

45° SITE LINE

FROM 6'-0" A.F.F.

AT DECK

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 84321

SCALE BAR 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 84321

SCALE BAR 1/4" = 1'-0"

CEMENT PLASTER FINISH

ASPHALT SINGLE ROOF FINISH

EXTERIOR LIGHTING LIMITED TO NO MORE

THAN 25 WATTS ( INCANDESCENT EQUIVALENT;

i.e. APPROXIMATELY 225 LUMENS

1

1

1

1

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

12/21/17

2

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

02/23/18

2

4

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

04/02/18

4

4

4

BARNWOOD GRAY WOOD STAIN

4

70



EXISTING RESIDENCENEW ADDITION

1
1

'
-
0

"
 
H

E
I
G

H
T

 
O

F
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

1
'
-
6

"

(3) COAT CEM.

PLAS. o/ 1/2"

PLYWD. o/ 2

LAYERS GRADE 'D'

BUILDING PAPER.

DECORATIVE

WOOD HEADER

BARNWOOD GRAY

STAIN

WOOD

TRELLIS

BARNWOOD

GRAY

STAIN

'JUSTICE DESIGN'

EXTERIOR LIGHT

FIXTURE EACH

SIDE OF DOOR

1
3

'
-
8

"
 
H

E
I
G

H
T

 
O

F
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

1
5

'
-
8

"
 
H

E
I
G

H
T

 
O

F
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 84321

SCALE BAR 1/4" = 1'-0"

CEMENT PLASTER FINISHASPHALT SINGLE ROOF FINISH

DOOR SIZE

F
R

A
M

E
 
A

S
S

E
M

B
L

Y

G
L

A
S

S
 
T

Y
P

E

MANUFACTURER

N
U

M
B

E
R

FINISH

WIDTH HEIGHT THK.

P
A

I
N

T

S
T

A
I
N

F
A

C
T

O
R

Y

16'-0" 7'-0" - WD.

OVERHEAD DOOR

SIGNATURE CARRIAGE

CUSTOM WOOD DOOR

102 2'-10" 6'-8" 1-3/4" WD.

KOLBE HERITAGE SERIES

PAINT BLACK

103

PAIR OF

2'-4"

6'-8" 1-3/4" WD.

KOLBE HERITAGE SERIES

PAINT BLACK w/ 18" SIDELITE

EACH SIDE

104 2'-8" 6'-8" 1-3/4" WD.

KOLBE HERITAGE SERIES

105 2'-8" 6'-8" 1-3/4" WD.

KOLBE HERITAGE SERIES

106 3'-0" 6'-8" 1-3/4" WD.

KOLBE HERITAGE SERIES

107

PAIR OF

1'-10"

6'-8" 1-3/4" WD.

KOLBE HERITAGE SERIES

WINDOW SIZE

N
O

M
I
N

A
L

 
H

E
A

D

H
E

I
G

H
T

G
L

A
S

S
 
T

Y
P

E

MANUFACTURER

N
U

M
B

E
R

T
Y

P
E

GLAZING

WIDTH HEIGHT

S
I
N

G
L

E

D
O

U
B

L
E

1 2'-0" 3'-0" 6'-8"

KOLBE HERITAGE SERIES

CASEMENT WINDOW

PAINT BLACK

2 B 2'-10" 4'-8" 6'-8"

KOLBE HERITAGE SERIES

CASEMENT WINDOW

PAINT BLACK

1

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

12/21/17

1

1

1

2

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

02/23/18

4

4

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

04/02/18

BARNWOOD GRAY WOOD STAIN

4

71



SCALE: N.T.S.

1

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

12/21/17

2

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

02/23/18

72



TOPO MAP

 

400 Foam Street, Suite 200B
Monterey, California. 93940
Office             831.601.9818         

Michael James Martin
Civil Engineering 

MJM

DATE:

Plan Check

REVISIONS:

DRAWN BY:

JOB NO.:

SCALE:

SHEET NO.:

CHECKED BY:

Do not scale drawings.  Verify dimensions
measurements and data at building or site.
Report  and questions to  MJM.

The use of these plans and specifications is
restricted to the original site for which
they were prepared.

All drawings and written material appearing
here in constitute the original and unpublished
work of  MJM and the same may not be
duplicated, used or disclosed without written
consent of  MJM.

         Michael James Martin Engineering

T-1

1
8" = 1'-0"

California

23 February 2018

2 NW of 7th on Carmello

Carmel

Munro Residence

73



 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

 
Historic Resources Board 

 
April 16, 2018 

 
To:   Chair Dyar and Historic Resource Board Members 
 
From:   Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Submitted by: Marnie R. Waffle, Senior Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Study application (DS 17-335) for additions to a 

historic residence known as ‘Gretel’ and a request to place the property 
on the City’s historic register. The project site is located on Torres Street, 
5 NE of 6th Avenue in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District. 

 
 
Application: DS 17-335 APN: 010-267-004  
Location: Torres Street, 5 NE of 6th Avenue  
Block: 60 Lots: 10 & N ½ of 12 
Applicant: Brian Congleton Property Owner: Michael & Roberta Voris 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 1,393-square foot addition on the north and east 
elevations of the existing historic ‘Gretel’ cottage. No changes are proposed to the historic 
‘Hansel’ cottage also known as ‘The Doll House’. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Historic Resources Board add the property to the Carmel Register of 
Historic Resources and issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards including approval of a waiver of on-site parking requirements and approval of 
design nonconformities to achieve consistency with the Secretary’s Standards.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The ‘Hansel’ cottage was originally known as ‘The Doll House’ and was constructed in 1924 by 
noted Carmel designer/builder Hugh W. Comstock. The cottage originally showcased the ‘Otsy 
Totsy’ rag dolls created by Comstock’s wife, Mayotta Browne. ‘Gretel’ was constructed in 1925 
southeast of ‘Hansel’ and served as Mayotta Browne’s office. Both cottages are listed on the 
Carmel Inventory under California Register Criteria 2 for being associated with a person, Hugh 
W. Comstock, who is important to Carmel’s history, and Criteria 3 for the Tudor-style 
“Storybook” architecture that would ultimately define the residential character of Carmel as a 
village in the forest. Additionally, the cottages are representative of the theme of Architectural 

74



Development (1903-1940) as set forth in the City’s Historic Context Statement. A Department 
of Parks and Recreation form (DPR 523A) was prepared for ‘The Doll House’ (aka Hansel and 
Gretel) in 2002 (Attachment C). The character defining features of the cottages include the 
following: 
 

Both cottages are wood-framed Tudor-style “Storybook” cottages resting on concrete 
foundations. ‘Hansel’ is one-and-one-half stories and ‘Gretel’ is one-story. The exterior 
wall cladding of both cottages is cement plaster mixed with pine needles troweled over 
burlap that was nailed to the redwood walls. The gabled roofs feature undulating ridge 
lines, flared eaves with exposed, hand carved rafter tails and vergeboards. The roofs are 
covered in wood shingles in a random staggered pattern. All of the door and window 
casings throughout the cottages are hand carved wood. 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The property is a 6,000-square foot lot located on the east side of Torres Street. Both cottages 
are set back from the street behind a rustic redwood grapestake fence in an informal landscape 
setting of mature oak and pine trees. The ‘Hansel’ cottage is 250 square feet and the ‘Gretel’ 
cottage is 478 square feet.  
 
According to the DPR 523A form, the ‘Gretel’ cottage contains two bedroom additions on the 
north (rear) elevation, one completed in 1928 and the other in 1949, both designed and 
constructed by Hugh W. Comstock. The applicant is proposing to remove the 1949 addition to 
facilitate construction of a new 1,005-square foot addition that would contain two bedrooms 
on the main floor (495 square feet) and a workshop, storage space and study (510 square feet) 
in a basement. Construction of this addition would require the removal of one, significant 16 
inch Coast live oak tree and one, moderately significant 10 inch Coast live oak tree. The 
proposed tree removals are supported by the City Forester and have been scheduled for review 
by the Forest and Beach Commission at their April 12, 2018 meeting. Staff will report the 
outcome of that meeting in the presentation to the Board on April 16th.  
 
The applicant is also proposing to remove a small bathroom addition on the east (side) 
elevation of the ‘Gretel’ cottage to facilitate the construction of a 388-square foot living room 
addition. Construction of this addition would be approximately 15 inches from a significant 45 
inch Monterey pine tree; the applicant is proposing to construct an engineered footing to 
protect the root system of this tree. 
 
The project site does not currently have any on-site parking. The applicant is proposing to 
construct a new 9-foot by 20-foot decomposed granite parking pad accessed through a rolling 
gate; a vehicle charging station is also proposed at the front of the property (southwest corner). 
Details for the rolling gate and charging station have not been provided yet; however, staff 
notes that the charging station will need to be located outside of the front yard setback and 
screened from public view. Staff also recommends the design of the rolling gate be consistent 

75



with the existing grape stake fence at the front of the property. Special conditions have been 
included in Attachment B addressing the charging station and rolling gate. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Carmel Municipal Code Section 17.32.140 (Determination of Consistency with the Secretary’s 
Standards) requires that an evaluation be prepared by a qualified professional for all major 
alterations to a historic structure for consistency with the Secretary’s Standards. The proposed 
modifications to the ‘Gretel’ cottage include additions exceeding two-percent of the existing 
floor area and therefore qualify as a major alteration. Determinations of consistency for major 
alterations require review and approval by the Historic Resources Board.  
 
In accordance with the Municipal Code, a Phase II Historic Assessment has been prepared by 
the City’s Historic Preservation Consultant (Attachment D). The Assessment concludes that the 
proposed alterations to the ‘Gretel’ cottage are consistent with the Secretary’s Standards.  
 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards: The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties identifies four primary treatment approaches to historic 
buildings: Restoration, Preservation, Reconstruction and Rehabilitation. Rehabilitation is the 
recommended standard of treatment for this project. The standards for Rehabilitation are 
included as Attachment E. 
 
The proposed project includes additions on the previously altered north and east elevations of 
the ‘Gretel’ cottage. The proposed new additions would allow for more efficient, contemporary 
use of the cottage by expanding the existing building envelope to provide additional living 
space.  
 
The Secretary’s Standards encourage placing new additions on non-character defining 
elevations and locating alterations in areas where previous alterations already exist. The 
applicant is proposing to remove existing, non-historic features to facilitate the new additions 
while preserving those portions of the cottage which are historically significant. Additionally, 
the new construction will be separated from the original historic cottage by simple hyphens 
located on the previously altered north and east elevations. The additions will be clearly 
differentiated from the historic fabric and can be easily removed in the future.  
 
Based on the Phase II Historic Assessment, the project is consistent with the Secretary’s 
Standards for Rehabilitation. 
 
Staff notes that standard #9 of the Secretary’s Standards (refer to Attachment E) states that the 
new work shall be compatible with the old with respect to size, scale, proportion and massing 
to protect the integrity of the property and its environment. While the proposed additions are 
not subordinate in size to the existing ‘Gretel’ cottage, the south addition is set back from the 
front elevation of the ‘Gretel’ cottage and and would be screened by landscaping including a 

76



number of mature trees. The north addition would also be screened by a number of mature 
trees as well as the ‘Hansel’ cottage such that it would not be readily visible from Torres Street.  
 
Carmel Register of Historic Resources: Carmel Municipal Code Section 17.32.090 (Carmel 
Register of Historic Resources) states that the City shall maintain a Register of Historic 
Resources designated by the City for public recognition and benefits. Only those historic 
resources included on the Carmel Inventory are eligible for listing on the Carmel Register.  
 
As noted above, a DPR 523A form was prepared for “The Doll House” (aka ‘Hansel’ and ‘Gretel’) 
in 2002 and the property was listed on the Carmel Inventory in 2006. The applicant is 
requesting to add the property to the Carmel Register. Staff recommends that the Board 
approve a Resolution adding the property to the Carmel Register (Attachment F). 
 
Preservation Incentives: CMC Section 17.32.100 (Benefits Available to Historic Resources on 
the Register) sets forth certain preservation incentives available to owners of resources listed 
on the Carmel Register. The preservation incentives include on-site parking reductions and the 
creation of design nonconformities when it is found necessary to achieve consistency with the 
Secretary’s Standards. The applicant is requesting to be added to the Carmel Register to take 
advantage of these preservation incentives. 
 
Parking Reduction: CMC Section 17.32.100.C (Parking Reductions) states, “On-site parking 
requirements for any continued occupancy, change, or intensification in use for any register-
listed resources may be waived by the Board. In granting such waivers, the Board may establish 
that the number of parking spaces required shall be the same as the number of spaces that exist 
on the property as of the effective date of listing in the register.” 
 
The project site is required to have two, 200-square foot parking spaces, one for each cottage, 
located behind the 15-foot front-yard setback. The site does not contain any on-site parking, 
and pursuant to CMC 17.10.030.F.d, the site must have conforming parking in order to add 
floor area. The applicant proposed the construction of a new detached garage; however, the 
addition of the garage would have adversely impacted the primary elevation of this historic 
property. 
 
The Municipal Code allows the on-site parking requirements to be waived by the Historic 
Resources Board for reasons pertaining to historic preservation if the property is listed on the 
City’s Historic Register. Staff recommends that the Board list the property on the Register and 
waive the parking requirement.  
 
Design Nonconformities: CMC Section 17.32.100.D (Design Nonconformities) states, “Existing 
structural nonconformities associated with a historic resource listed on the register (e.g., 
setback encroachments, excess height or insufficient parking, etc.) that are essential to 
maintaining the integrity of the resource shall be treated as conforming for the purposes of 
applying CMC 17.36.030 and 17.36.040, in the review of maintenance, repair, alterations and 

77

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/CarmelbytheSea/html/Carmel17/Carmel1736.html#17.36.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/CarmelbytheSea/html/Carmel17/Carmel1736.html#17.36.040


additions. Design nonconformities shall be expanded or created only when this is found 
necessary to achieve consistency with the Secretary’s Standards.” 
 
The project site is a 60-foot wide lot with a required composite side yard setback of 15 feet. The 
applicant is proposing a composite side yard setback of 6 feet in order to achieve consistency 
with the Secretary’s Standards. The setback reduction for the proposed bedroom addition on 
the north elevation would allow the new addition to be completely obscured from Torres 
Street. Additionally, the setback reduction for the proposed living room addition on the east 
elevation would preserve the historic 1928 addition on the south elevation of the ‘Gretel’ 
cottage. 
 
Lastly, Staff recommends that the Board approve a substandard 9-foot by 20-foot parking pad 
at the southwest corner of the property. The parking pad would allow the property owners to 
park one vehicle on-site and was proposed in-lieu of a detached garage which would have 
adversely impacted the primary elevation of this historic property. The parking pad would be 
accessed through a rolling gate and would be equipped with a vehicle charging station. 
 
Environmental Review: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  
 
The proposed modifications to the historic resource known as “The Doll House” (aka ‘Hansel’ 
and ‘Gretel’) were reviewed by the City’s Historic Preservation Consultant and a Phase II 
Historic Assessment was prepared (refer to Attachment D). The Assessment analyzed the 
proposed modifications based on the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of 
Historic Properties and concluded that the proposed project is consistent with the Secretary’s 
Standards. Modifications to a historic resource that are determined to be consistent with the 
Secretary’s Standards do not require further CEQA review for impacts to historic resources. 
Staff recommends that the project be found consistent with the Secretary’s Standards.  
 
The project qualifies for a Class 32 Categorical Exemption from the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (In-Fill Development Projects) of 
the State CEQA Guidelines. Class 32 exemptions consist of projects characterized as in-fill 
development meeting the conditions described in Section 15332. The project is consistent with 
the General Plan and Zoning designations of Single Family Residential; the project is located 
within the city limits on a 6,000-square foot lot and is surrounded by urban uses; the project 
site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species; the project would not 
result in any significant effects related to traffic, noise, air quality or water quality; and, the 
project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 
 
Alternatives: If the Historic Resources Board concurs with the Phase II Historic Assessment, the 
Board shall issue a determination of consistency and adopt appropriate conditions of approval 
(refer to Attachment B). The Board’s findings shall be supported by substantial evidence. If the 

78



Board does not concur with the Phase II Historic Assessment, the Board may request additional 
information prior to issuing a determination of consistency or may issue a finding of 
noncompliance with the Secretary’s Standards. A finding of noncompliance shall be supported 
by substantial evidence. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Attachment A – Site Photographs 
• Attachment B – Conditions of Approval 
• Attachment C – DPR 523A Form for ‘The Doll House’ 
• Attachment D – Phase II Historic Assessment 
• Attachment E – Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
• Attachment F – Resolution for Listing on the Carmel Register 
• Attachment G – Project Plans 
• Attachment H – Colored Renderings 
• Attachment I – Written Statement 

79



 
Photo 1. ‘Hansel’ Cottage (original “The Doll  House”) 

 

 
Photo 2. ‘Gretel’ Cottage (West Elevation) 

80



 
Photo 3. View of Proposed Living Room Addition (South Elevation) 

 

 
Photo 4. East Elevation 

 

Bathroom Addition 
to be removed 

Living Room 
Addition 

81



 
Photo 5. Southwest View of ‘Gretel’ 

 

 
Photo 6. Northwest View of ‘Gretel’ 

Location of Proposed Bedroom Addition 

1949 Addition 
to be removed 

82



 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
DS 17-335 (Voris) 
Torres Street, 5 NE of 6th Ave 
Block: 60, Lot: 10 & N ½ of 12 
APN: 010-267-004 
 
AUTHORIZATION:  
 
1. This Determination of Consistency (DS 17-335) authorizes a 1,393-square foot addition 

on the north and east elevations of the existing historic ‘Gretel’ cottage. This approval 
includes a waiver of on-site parking requirements and approval of the following design 
nonconformities: a) reduction in the required 15-foot composite side yard setback to a 
6-foot composite side yard setback and b) establishment of a 9-foot by 20-foot parking 
pad at the southwest corner of the property. The project shall be implemented 
consistent with the project plans submitted to the Historic Resources Board at the April 
16, 2018 meeting, except as modified by the conditions below, and shall conform to the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:  
 
2. The vehicle charging station shall be relocated outside of the front yard setback and 

shall be screened from view with landscaping. 
 

3. The applicant shall provide a detail for the proposed rolling gate. The design of the gate 
shall be consistent with the existing grape stake fence at the front of the property. 
 

4. On the construction drawings, the applicant shall identify the dimension of the existing 
historic windows and the proposed new windows on the addition to ensure that the 
new windows are properly differentiated.  

 
5. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-construction 

meeting to include the contractor and the City’s Project Planner to ensure compliance 
with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. A 
Building Permit will not be issued until this meeting has occurred. 
 

6. Trees shall be protected during construction by methods approved by the City Forester. 
All foundations within 6 feet of significant trees shall be excavated by hand. If any tree 
roots larger than two inches (2”) are encountered during construction, the City Forester 
shall be contacted before cutting the roots. The City Forester may require the roots to 

83

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - Conditions of Approval



be bridged or may authorize the roots to be cut. If roots larger than two inches (2”) in 
diameter are cut without prior City Forester approval or any significant tree is 
endangered as a result of construction activity, the building permit will be suspended 
and all work stopped until an investigation by the City Forester has been completed. 
Twelve inches (12”) of mulch shall be evenly spread inside the dripline of all trees prior 
to the issuance of a building permit. 

 
*Acknowledgement and acceptance of conditions of approval. 
 
 
 
______________________________  ___________________________ __________ 
Property Owner Signature   Printed Name    Date 
 
 

Once signed, please return to the Community Planning and Building Department. 
 

84



85

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C - DPR523 Form



86



87



88



KIEhI.T" t" :\]EAVTY
3}.ft LNGF{:TH$'Lr}5F AVFN I ] ]E

trrAClf lC GKOVI[:, ,CAI"]lfr{-)R}-J IA E3S5,t}
{83 $} 3 /')- 8739

January 13,2018

Mr. Marc Weiner

Planning Director
Carrnel Planning & Building Dept.

P.O. Drawer G

City of Cannel-by-the-Sea

Dear Mr. Weiner:

lntroduction:

This Track II Historic Assessrnent has been prepared on behalf of Michael
and Roberta Voris as part of an application for additions and alterations to the
'Gretel'cottage located 5SE of 5'r'St, east side of Tones (APN# 010-092-010), in
Cartnel (see photos, plans & drawings provided).

Historical Background & Description:

The sublect property is a f925 one-story, wood-framed "Fairy-Tale" Style
residence sirnilar in character to its near neighbor 'Hansel' (1924)" both sharing the

sarne parcel. The stmctnre was originally constmcted as an office for Mayotta
Cornstock, as her "Otsy-Totsy" doll business had overlaken the 250 Sq. ft
'Hansel' space. 'Gretel' has had two additions, one in 1928 and the second in
1949, expanding the original oflice into 478 Sq. Ft. of living & storage space. Both
cottages sit back from Torres St. in an informal landscape setting of rnature oak &
pine trees, with a ground cover of shrubs and floryers. Its ollce operl forest setting

is now fiamed by newer residential construction, with alarge motel directly across

Torres. It is significant, within the theme of Architectural Developrnent established

in the 2008 Cannel Historic Context Statement. Its period of significance would be

1925-1928 (see California DPR 523 documentation provided).

$ "r 15'T'{lR I C Ftr-q.Es EIqVA]|X{]hil h,{ LJ5Frl"-rltu"{ tt\"l-ERPf{ tlr'l-A:f I(}t\
89

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment D - Phase II Assessment



Character-defining featnres of 'Gretel' include its one-story height; irregular

plan; cement plaster mixed with pine needles over burlap that was nailed to the

single-wall redwood exterior siding; a rnedium-pitched stepped and intersectirg

roof systern, with an undnlating roof line and flared eaves with hand-carved rafter-

tails; wood shingle roof covering; the west facing facade is characterized by an

arched wood-planked door on the south side, with false half-timbering suggestirrg a

sunburst over the door. Fenestration is irregular with a cornbination of fixed and

casement type rnulti-paned wood windows and Freuch doors with hand-carved

casings; Palladiarr-like frarned French doors characterize the gable end of the I 928

west facing bay, with an arched half-window iu the east gable apex.

Project Description

Based on the Secretary qf'the Interior',v 'l'reatment of Hi.storic l:'ropertie,v,the

appropnate treatrnent approach would be Rehabilitation. The current owners, Mr. &
Mrs. Voris, wish to rnaintain the property in its residual use. They propose to ( l)
remove a non historic storeroom addition, and add a one-story north side bedroorn,

with additional living space below grade. (2) rernove an existrng 1949 bathroorn to

add a one-story living roorn off the south side elevation. (3) raise the existing

foundation 4" to bring the original interior space to a single level (4) minor
reconfiguration of existing exterior pathway for parking pad

Evaluation for Significance

Introduction

The following summanzes the National, State and local criteria and provides an

evaluation of historic significance for each criteria level.

National, State and Local Registration Criteria

Historic resources may be designated on the federal, state or local level.

Generally, to be eligible for listing, a resource must be historically significant and

retain enough historic integrity to convey that significance. The criteria for listing in
the National Register of Historic Places, Califomia Register of Historical Resources

and the Carmel Historic Preservation Ordinance are descnbed below.

90



Nutionul Register of Historic Pkrces (NR)

The Natronal Historic Preservation Act of 1966 authonzed the Secretary of the

Interior to create a National Register of Historic Places. Districts, sites, buildings, and

objects significant in Arnerican history, architecture, archaeology, engineering and

culture are eligible for listing if they rneet at least one of four criteria ( l6 U.S.C. 470,

et seq.. as amended. 36 C.F. R. 60.1(a).) Eligible resources are those

A. That are associated with events that have tnade a sisnificant contribution to

the broad pattems of our history, or

B. That are associated with the lives of persons significant in our past: or

C. That ernbody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of
construction, or that represent the work of a rnaster, or that possess high

high artistic values, or that represent a significant and distinguishable entity

whose cornponents rnay lack individual distinction: or

D. That have yielded, or rnay be likely to yield, inforrnation imporlant to

prehistory or history.

Eligible resources must also retair-r sufficient integrity of location, design,

setting, materials, workrnanship, f-eeling, and association to convey the relevant

historic significance (36 C.F.R.60. l(a). The seven aspects of integrity are described

later in this section.

Californiu Register of Historic Resources (CR)

A resource is eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical

Resources it:

1. Is associated with events that have rnade a significant contribution to

the broad pattems of California history and cultural heritage.

2. Is associated with the lives of persons imporlant in our past.

3. Ernbodies the distinctive characteristics of atype, period, region, or rnethod

of constmction, or represents the work of an irnportant creative individual,

or possesses high aftistic value.

5. Has yielded, or is likely to yield, infonnation irnportant in prehistory or

history (California Public Resources Code 5024 l(c\.

91



The California Code of-Regulations notes that integrity is the authenticity of a

historical resource's physical identity evidenced by the survival of characteristics that

existed during the resource's period of significance. Resources eligible for listing in

the California Register rnust retain enough of their historic character or appearance to

be recognizable as historic resources and convey the reasons for their significance.

The sarne seven aspects of integrity are considered when evaluating resources

for listing in the National Register and California Register. Location, design, setting,

rnaterials, workmanship, feeling and association. Alterations over time or historic

changes in use rnay thernselves be significant. However. resources that may not retain

enough integrity to rneet National Register criteria may still be eligible for listing in

tlre California Register.

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Historic Preservation Ordinance

The criteria ernployed by Cannel for designation of historic resources are the

same general standards by which the significance of a historic property is judged for

inclusion in the National (NR) andlor Califbrnia Register (CR), and are included in

Chapter 17, Section 32 of the Historic Preservation Ordinance in the Cannel-by-the-

Sea Municipal Code.

Historic Integrify

National Regi,ster IJulletin ', I5; Hov, to Apply the lValional Regi,ster Crileriu

fbr Evalttation defines historic integrity as "the ability of a property to convey its

significance." Historic properties either retain their integrity or they do not. To retain

integriry-, a resource will always retain several and usually most of the seven aspects

of intesritv.

1. Location: the place where the historic property was constructed or the

place

where the historic event occurred.

Design: the combination of elernents that create the fbnn, plan, space,

structure, and style of a property.

Setting: the physical environment of a historic property.

)

3.

-t

92



4. Maferials: the physical elernents that were cornbined or deposited dunng
a particular period of tirne and in a particular patter-n or configuration to
fonn a historic property.

5. Workmanship: the physical evidence of the crafts of a particular culture

or people during any given period in history or prehistory.

6. Feeling: a property's expression of the aesthetic or historic sense of a
particular period of time.

7. Association: the direct link between an imporlant historic event or person

and a historic properfy.

Nalionol llegisler Bttllelin 1i notes that evaluating histonc integrity rnay be

subjective analysis, but is always based on understanding the property's physical

features and how they relate to the property's historic significance. The integnty
evaluation can begin only after the evaluator establishes the property's significance:
u'hy it is significant (identifying its area of significance and how it rneets the relevant

National, State and Local designation criteria), v,here it is irnportant (location), and

u,hen the resource is significant (its "period of significance").
Eligibility for historic listing of buildings, structures, objects, sites and districts,

i.e., rests on the twin factors of historic significance and integrity to be considered for
listing in the National Register of Historic Places, the California Register of Historical
Resources, and the 2A03 Cannel Historic Resource Inventory. Loss of integrity, if-
sufficiently great, will overwhehn the historic significance a resource lnay possess and

render it ineligible for historic listing. Likewise, a resource can have cornplete

integrity, but if it lacks significance, it rnust also be considered ineligible.

The National and California Registers, as well as the City of Cannel-by-the-Sea

Historic Resource Inventory adopt the sarne rnethods of establishing historic integrity,
as described above.

National and California Register Significance

'Hansel' & 'Gretel' are not significant under National (NR), but do rneet the

State (CR) Registers criteria. They are not associated with events that have rnade a

significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history (NR-A; CR- I )

93



They were constructe d h 1924 8L 1925 respectively as a showcase fbr cornrnercial

sales and an office for the owners. They do qualily for association with a significant

person frorn the past (CR-2), architect Hugh Cornstock. 'Hansel' (CR-3) is the root

building of the picturesque "Fairy-Tale" cottages that calne to define Cannel's

perceived architectural character as a village in a forest frorn the 1920s to present.

'Hansel' is the first "Fairy-Tale cottage" designed by noted Cannel building designer

Hugh White Cornstock (1893-1950).'Hansel' &'Gretel' clearly embody the

distinctive characteristics of a popular building type, their historic period and method

of construction. Both buildings are listed in the California Register of Historical

Resources at the local level of significance (see DPR 523 provided).

City of Carmel by-the-Sea Historic Resource Inventory (HRI)

Based on its level of physical integrity 'Hansel' is the prirne example of the

"Fairy-Tale" cottage Style in Cannel. 'Gretel' has been sotnewhat rnodified over titne

by later additions, but is also locally listed for its design. Both have close association

with their designer-builder Hugh Cornstock, one of the most significant rnetnbers of
the building trades in Cannel fron 1924 to the 1950s. Both buildings are listed at the

local level of significance in the 2003 Cannel Histciric Resource lnventory for

architectural design, and the associations noted above, under the therne of
Architectural Developrnent in Cannel ( I 888- 1965).

Evaluation of Historic Integrify

The record shows that 'Hansel' has had one minor addition to the rear in 1949

(CBP# 1970), plus repairs in 1953 and a reroofing in 1999.'Gretel' had a bedroorn

addition off its north side-elevation in 1928 (CBP# 2056) and a fuither storage

extension. off the sarne elevation, in 1949 (CBP# ll90) (see DPR 523 provided).

The seven aspects of Integrity are:

. Setting: Both cottages are in their original residential neighborhood setting.

However, new construction, over tirne has constricted their acfual landscape

setting to the confines of a single parcel, wit[ a large, two-story tnotel building

on the opposite side of Torres Street. The subject property, while constrained

by developrnent still retains sufficient integrity of setting.

94



. I.ocationz The cottages still rernain in their original location, giving it integrity

of location
. Design' Both cottages retain rnuch of their original design, as constructed in

1924-1925. Changes to 'Gretel', noted above, have somewhat diminished, but

not fully compromised its integrity of its design.
. Workmunship: In spite of the changes noted above, the cottages retain rnuch of

their integrity of workrnanship.
. Materiuls.' rninor changes not withstanding, both cottages retain most of their

original rnaterials.
. Feeling.' Both cottages retain sufflcient character-defining features, including

their irnrnediate landscape setting to give thern integrity of feeling.
. Associrttion: Both cottases retain intesritv of association.

Conclusion

The subject property has undergone sorne inevitable changes over its !Q* years

irr service, particularly with the loss of its larger original forest setting. However,

because of their iconic "Fairy-Tale" design, and association with rnaster builder Hugh

Comstock they continue to evoke a strong sense of time and place and of feeling and

association with one of Cannel's most character-defining residential housing

developrnents of the twentieth century, and qualify as a historic resources under

criterion CR-2, for these associations, and criterion CR-3 for their "Fairy-Tale"

architectural design by Hugh Cornstock, in the context the therne noted above in the

2008 Cannel By-the-Sea Historic Contert Staternent.

IMPACTS OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT

Introduction

The Secrelary of the Interior',s Standard.;.for lhe'I'reotrnenl of'Historic
l'ropertie,s (,standarcl.s) provides the fiarnework for evaluating the irnpacts of additions

and alterations to historic buildings. The Standarrl-r describe four treatment

approaches. preseruation, rehabilitation, restoration and reconstruction. The Standard,s

require that the treatrnent approach be detennined first, as a different set of Standard,s

apply to each approach. For the subject property, the treatrnent approach is

rehabilitation. The Stanclarcl,r describe rehabilitation as:

95



In Rehabrlitation, historic building rnaterials and character-deflning features are

protected and rnaintained as they are in the treatment for Preser-vation; however, an

assumption is rnade prior to the work that existing historic fabric has become

darnaged or deteriorated over tirne and, as a result more repair and replacernent will
be required.

Thus, latitude is given in the Standard,s.for Rehabilitation anc{ (iuideline,s./br

Rehubilitation to replace extensively deteriorated, damaged, or rnissing features using

either traditional or substitute materials. Of the four treatments, only Rehabilitation

includes an opportunity to make possible an efTicient contemporary use through

alterations and additions. (see The Secrelary rf'the interior's Standard,s.for Treatmenl

of Hi,storic l'ropertie,r (lMashington, D.C.: National Park Service, 1995).

The ten standards for rehabilitation are:

1. A properly will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that

requires rninimal change to its distinctive material, features. spaces and

spati al relationships.

2 The historic character of a properfy will be retained and preserved. The

rernoval of distinctive rnaterials or alteration of features, spaces and spatial

relationships that characterize a ptoperty will be avoided.

3 Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time. place, and

use. Changes that create a false sense of historical developrnent, such as

adding conjectural fbatures, spaces or elements frorn other historic properties

will not be undertaken.

4. Changes to a historic property that have acquired historic significance in

their own right will be retained and preserv'ed.

5. Distinctive rnaterials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or

exarnples of craftsrnanship that characterize a property will be preserved.

6. Deteriorated features will be repaired rather that replaced. Where the

severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature,

the new feature will rnatch the old in design, color. texture, and,

where possible, rnaterials. Replacernent of rnissing features will be

substantiated by docurnentary and physical evidence.

7. Chernical or physical treatrnents, if appropnate, will be undertaken using

the gentlest means possible. Treatrnents that cause darnage to historic

96



materials will not be used.

8. Archaeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such

resources must be disturbed, rnitigation tneasures will be underlaken.

9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not

destroy historic rnaterials, features, and spatial relationships that

characteri ze the proPertY.

The new work shall be diff-erentiated frorn the old and will be cornpatible

with the historic rnaterials, features, size, scale and proportion, and rnassing

to protect the integnty of the property and its environtnent.

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be underlaken

in such a rnanner, that if rernoved in the future, the essential fbnn and

integrity of-the historic property and its environment would be unirnpaired.

Project lmpacts

The proposed project irrcludes additions off the previously altered NE side,

rear (east), and south eler,ations of 'Gretel'. The proposed additions will provide for a

rnore efficient contemporary use by expanding the existing building envelope to

provide needed living space to the existing 478 Sq. Ft. cottage. Proposed alterations

include:

. Rernoval of the non historic storeroorn addition on the nofth srde-

elevation & addition of a new one-story bedroom, with additional living

space below grade.

. Removal of an existing 1949 bathroorn to add a one-story living rooln

ofT the south side-elevati on.

. Raise the existing foundation 4" to bring the onginal interior space to a

single level.
. Minor reconfiguration of existing exterior pathway for a parking pad.

See photos, plans & drawings provided.

All new work will be undertaken in confonxance with the T'he Secretary o/

the Interior's Slandaruls.for the Treatrnenl of Historic Prctperlies, ttnder {he

-\t andq rd for lleha b i I i tati on.

The Secretary's Standards encorlrages "placing a new addition on a non-

97



character-defining elevation." and locating alterations to historic properties in areas

where previor,rs alterations already exist. The 1992 National Park Service

lllu,ytrated Gtildelines for Rehabilitating Hisloric llttildings, states that "The

Standards are to be applied to specific rehabilitation projects in a reasonable

mauner, taking into consideration econornic and technical feasibility."

lrr this iltstarrce, the proposed rehab work is concerned with retnoval of
existing non-historic features in order for the addition of adequate living space to

rnake possible an efficient contemporary use while preserving those portions and

features of the properly which are significant to its historic, architectural, and

cultural values.

The owrrers propose to rernove an identified non historic storerootn ou the

NE comer of 'Gretel' and add a one-story living room with further living space

below grade, visr,rally screened from public view behind 'Hattsel'.

They also propose to relnove a non historic bathroorn addition frorn the

south side of 'Gretel', adding a one-story living rooln, stepped away frorn the

original 1925 historic building envelope, but attached by a sirnple flat roof-ed

hyphen and an opeu wood deck. The proposed addition would be slightly lower in

height, than 'Gretel', and screened from public view by foliage.

As part of the project the owrers wish to raise the existirrg fbundation by

approxirnately 4" to level the interior floors of the altered historic building.

A tninor reconfiguration of an existing pathway is proposed for provision of
off street parking, due to traffic congestion along Torues Street.

The proposed rernovals and new additions are designed and will be

constructed so that the character-defining featured of the historic buildings atrd

their environment will not be radically changed. The new elements will reflect the

existing historic building fabric for continuity of design. The work will be

compatible with the size, scale, proportions and massing of the historic resource to

protect the integrity of the subject property and its environment. This is consistent

witlr Rehabilitation Standard #2,#5. If removed in future, the essential form and

integrity of the historic residence will be unirnpaired, consistent with
Rehabilitation Standards #9 and#10 (see photos, plans and drawings provided).

Impacts of the Proposed Project:

98



The owuers have proposed the following additions & alterations for conternporary
usage.

WEST (FRONT) ELEVATION (prirnary, altered)

Consistent with the Secretary of the lnterior's Standards for Rehabilitation,
under the treatrnent of building sites and for uew additions to historic buildings, the
proposed additions will be located at the rear, and on inconspicuous sides of the
historic buildings and lirnited in size and scale in relationship to them.
Every feasible efforl will be made to preserve the features of the site that are
irnportartt in defining its overall historic character, retaining the relationship
between buildings, landscape features and open space.

NORTH SIDE-ELEVATION (secondary, altered)

A ttew, one-story bedroorn & below-grade living space is proposed to be
sited off the NE corner of the "Gretel" building envelope, directly behind, and
vrsually screeued frorn the street by 'Hansel' ald appropriate vegetation. A srnall
porlron of the non historic storeroom on this comer of 'Gretel' will be retained to
create a llarrow hyphen providing access between the historic cottage and new
bedroorn space.

As proposed, the foturdatiou attd space for the below grourd cornponent
woLrld be hand dug, with the uew roof-lirre well below that of 'Hansel' and about
even with 'Gretel', maiutaining the current street view of both cottages west to
east. The addition will be rectaugular in plan, side-gabled, nutning east to west,
with a board-and-batten exterior wall-cladding and stone veneer below the water
table., clearly differentiating the historic cottages from the new constnrction, atrd
visually lirnrting its size and scale, by orientation, in relationship to the historic
buildings

If the proposed addition is removed in future, the essential fonn arrd integrity
of the historic property and its environrnent would be unimpaired, consistent with
Rehabilitation Standards #9 & #10.

NOTE: There are 28 oak and piue trees on the subject property. Two trees would
reqttire removal iu order to construct the proposed bedroorn. Ary rnodifrcatiorrs to
the site tnust consider the fbrest canopy, in tenns of cornpliance witl'r City tree

99



protection ordinances as well as preselvation of the historic forest context for the
cottages.

EAST (REAR) ELEVATION (secondary, altered)

The rear elevation of 'Gretel' is ctrrently characterrzed by the presence of
three rron historic additions. Ar undated extension of the storeroom area off the NE
conrer of the 1928 bedroorn. An urrdated plywood-clad shed-roofed storage unit,
rutltitrg along the rear wall of this bedrooln space, and the 1949 bathroorn addition
on the south side of the original1925'Gretel' building envelope.

As proposed, a porlion of the storeroorn addition will be repurposed for
access fiorn the 1928 bedrooln space into the new bedroorn addition. The undated
shed storage along the rear will be rebuilt and contirrue irr use for storage. The
1949 batl"trooln will be replaced by a glazed, flat-roofed gallery accessing the
proposed ltvtng rooln addition and open deck space from the west end of the 1928

bedroorn. One oak tree, abutting the rear storage lockers is scheduled for rernoval
(see note regarding tree rernoval above).

SOUTH SIDE-ELEVATION (secondary, altered)

Changes proposed for this elevation will be the demolition of the 1949
bathroorn and its replacement by the glazed, flat-roofed gallery addressed in the
proposal for treatrnent of the rear elevation above.

The west gable-end of the proposed living roorn space will begin at the
location of the original rear wall of the 'Gretel' building envelope, separated frorn
the main building block by the flat-roofed gallery. The addition would be
rectattgular iu plan, side-gabled, mnning east to west, with a board-and-batten and

stone veneer exterior wall-cladding, clearly differentiatirrg the historic cottages
frotn the uew construction, and visually lirniting its size and scale, by orientation,
in relationship to the historic buildings.
The new feature will be screened frorn the roadway by proposed plantings and the
existirrg rnature vegetatiorr.

As proposed, the work shall reuse, to the extent feasible, any available
historrc building tnaterial, and where necessary rnatch required replacement
features, in kind (see photos and plans & drawings provided).

100



New work will be clearly differentiated fiorn the Old, bttt cornpatible with the size,

scale, proportions and rnassing to protect the integrity of the subject property and

its environrnent. lf removed in future, the essential fonn and integrity of the

historic resource and its environment will be unirnpaired.

Mitigation of Projecf Impacts

As stated above, the proposed treatment plan for the ltonse is rehabilitation. The

proposed project requires no other rnitigation than compliance with City

forestatiorr regulations, because it follows the Standards, as outlined below.

l. A propertyvtill beusedas itwus historrcalLy or be given Lt nL'vr use lhat

rcquire"s minimal change lo its distinctive rnqtericrl,.fealttres, spaces and

,:pati a I relat i onshi ps.

The house is being retained in its historic use as a single farnily resideuce, which

supports this Standard.

2. The historic chqr(tcter q/'a property will be retqined and preserved. 7'he

rernoval of distinctive maleria/s rtr alteration o.f .featttres, spaces and

spatial relationship"s that characterize a property will he avoided.

Based orr the character-defining features of the "Iictiry-7'ale" StyIe, as they appear

irr tlre 2005 DPR 523, the west facing fagade is the principal character-defirring

feature of the'Gretel' cottage. It will essentially remain the sarne. The sirnple

hyphen treatrnent of the side-elevations, separating the new additions frorn the

original building envelope assure the prorninerlce of the fagade. As proposed,

added landscaping will adequately screen both addjtions to the cottage within the

existing viewshed. The historic cottage should not be obscured, darnaged or

destroyed by these changes, which supports this Standard.

3. Iiach properlywill be recognizeda,s a physical record qf its time, place,

qnd.use. Change,s thal create a.false sense o.f histrtrical tl.evelopment, such

as acl.ding conjectura/.features, spaces or elements from rtther hi,storuc

properties v,ill nol be undertaken.

101



Tlre origin al 1925 cottage has had at least two additions over tirne off its north side

elevation, plus the 1949 non historic bathroorn. The proposed design of the

bedroorn and living rooln additions makes very clear what is historic and what is

ltew, withor"rt creatirrg a false sense of historical developtnent with conjectttral

elernents fiorn other histonc properties, which supporls this Standard.

4. (lhunge,s to ct hisloric property thul hove acquired hislrtric sigytificance in

lheir ov,n right wi.ll he retuined and preservecl.

The 1928 bedroorn wine off the north side elevation will be retaiued. A later

altered storeroorn addition, off the same bedroom wiug, was identified through the

rntrnicipal process in planning docurnents from 2005 as a non historic feature of the

cottage, as were the rear shed-roofed storage units, and the 1949 rear bathroom

addition. Retaining the 1928 bedroorn supports this Standard.

5. Distinctive rnalerials, features, finishes, qnd. constntction techniclues or

examples of crafi,;manship lhat characterize u properly u,ill be preserved

The only proposed rnaterial change to the original 'Gretel' cottage burlding

envelope will be to rnove an existing plank wood door ou its south side-elevation

to the proposed new bedroorn addition. Repair and tnainteuatrce of examples of
craftsrnarrship exhibited on the existing historic building euvelope will occur as

necessary, consistent with National Park Service preservation standards, thns

satisfying Standard #5.

6. l)eterirtrated fealw'es will be repaired rctlher that replaced. Where lhe

"severity of deterioralion requires replacernenl of a di:;linc'tivc.feature,

the new fbature will match the old in design, colctr, lexture, crnd,

where po"s.sihle, ntaterial,s. [leplacement of mis,sing.fbatttres will be

,sub,stunliuted hy doctunentary and physicctI evidence.

The proposed project will repair, in kind, deteriorated historic features.

Replacernent, if uecessary, will be with in-kind rnaterials. Statrdard #6 is satisfied.

102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

 
1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 

requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site 
and environment." 

 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The 

removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize 
a property shall be avoided." 

 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken."  

 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic 

significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved."  
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the 

severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials.  Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated 
by documentary, physical, and pictorial evidence." 

 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 

 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 

preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 

historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment." 

 
10.  "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 

such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired." 

 

111

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment E - Secretary's Standards



 
 
Return to: 
Carmel City Hall 
Post Office Box CC 
Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93921 
Attention: Marnie R. Waffle, Senior Planner 

 
 

RESOLUTION QUALIFYING A HISTORIC RESOURCE FOR  
LISTING ON THE CARMEL REGISTER 

 
The subject property is designated a Historical Resource per Resolution recorded with the Monterey 
County Recorder on October 19, 2006 (Document No. 2006092987). This Resolution qualifies the subject 
resource to be placed on the Carmel Register which will allow the property owner to take advantage of a 
preservation incentive program. 
 
This Resolution is being recorded pursuant to section 5029(b) of the California Public Resources Code 
that requires the City to record all historic resource determinations. This action also is taken in 
furtherance of the Local Coastal Program certified by the California Coastal Commission and 
implemented by City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Ordinances No. 2004-01 and 2004-02. 
 
As stated in the Carmel Municipal Code Section 17.32.040.C, the resource should be representative of at 
least one theme include in the Historic Context Statement; shall retain substantial integrity; should be a 
minimum of 50 years of age and shall meet at least one of the four criteria for listing in the California 
Register at a national or Statewide level of significance (primary resource) or at a regional or local level 
of significance (local resource) per CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a)(3). The four criteria for listing are 
as follows: (1) Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns 
of local or regional history or the cultural heritage of California or the United States; (2) Is associated 
with the lives of persons important to local, California or national history; (3) Embodies the distinctive 
characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of a master, 
an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values; or (4) Has yielded, or has the potential 
to yield, information important to the prehistory or history of the local area, California or the nation. 
This resource is over 50 years of age and meets criteria No.’s 2 and 3. 

 
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 010-267-004 
Block: 60   Lot(s): 10 & N ½ of 12 
Current Owner:  Michael & Roberta Voris  
Street Location: Torres Street, 5 NE of 6th Avenue 

 
It is the purpose of this Resolution to alert the owner, the successors and assigns to the existence of an 
historic resource on the property. This historic resource is protected under laws of the State of California 
and of the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea including the California Coastal Act, the California Public Resources 
Code, the Carmel-by-the-Sea Municipal Code and the Local Coastal Program.  
 
Attachment A – DPR Form 523A (4 pages) 
 
Certified by: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Marnie R. Waffle 
Senior Planner, Carmel-by-the-Sea 

112

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment F - Resolution for Historic Register



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 

Historic Resources Board 
 

April 16, 2018 
 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 
 
From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Subject:  Historic Evaluation (HE 18-136) of the Carmel Police Department. 
 
 
Application: HE 18-136 APN: 010-096-013 
Location: SE Cor. Of Junipero and 4th Avenue.  
Block:  48 Lot(s): 1-6 
Applicant/Property Owner:  City of Carmel-by-the-Sea   
 
RECCOMENATION 
Issue of a Determination of Historic Ineligibility to the subject property. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Carmel Police Department is located at the southeast corner of Junipero Street and 4th 
Avenue.  The building was constructed in 1966 and was designed by Burde, Shaw & Associates.1 
The same architectural firm also designed the Shell Gas Station at the corner of San Carlos and 
5th Avenue, which is listed on the City’s Historic Inventory.  Walter Burde, who was a member of 
the firm, is recognized in the City’s Historic Context Statement as an important architect who 
worked in Carmel during the post-war era.  In addition to the aforementioned buildings, he also 
designed the former bank building located at the southeast corner of Dolores Street and 7th 
Avenue. 
  
The City Council is considering a remodel the Carmel Police Department, which would include 
an expansion of the building necessary for police functions and accessibility.  The project is still 
in the preliminary design phase.  Because the building is more than 50 years old, it must first 
receive an historic evaluation prior to making any alterations. On April 4, 2018, the Community 
Planning and Building Department issued a Preliminary Determination of Historic Ineligibility 
(see Attachment A).  Staff determined the building to be ineligible because it does not relate to 
historic themes or property types established in the Historic Context Statement and because 
there are other better examples of the architect’s work in the City. 

1 The Historic Context Statement incorrectly identifies Robert Jones as the architect.  Robert Jones designed the 
Carmel Youth Center, however, the project plans for the Carmel Police Department identify Burde, Shaw & 
Associates as the architect of record. 

125



Pursuant to City Municipal Code Section 17.32.060.D.2, any member of the Historic Resources 
Board (HRB) may call a determination of ineligibility up for review by filing a written request 
with the Planning Department during the appeal period.  Two HRB members have filed a 
written request that the determination of the Carmel Police Department be evaluated by the 
HRB. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Review Process 
CMC Section 17.32.040 (Eligibility Criteria for the Carmel Inventory) states that the City shall 
use certain criteria in making determinations of eligibility of properties for the City’s Historic 
Inventory. Below is a summary of the four eligibility criteria that must be met in order for the 
property to qualify as historically significant, followed by a staff analysis: 
 
Criteria A.  Should be representative of at least one theme included in the Historic Context  
  Statement.  
 
Staff Analysis:  The Carmel Police Department was built in 1966 and is not a good 
representation of any particular architectural style.  The City’s Historic Preservation Consultant, 
Kent Seavey, classifies the building as Brutalist architectural style, which is a descendant of 
modernist architecture.  Brutalist architecture is not identified in the City’s Historic Context 
Statement. With regard to modernist architecture, the City’s Historic Context Statement 
recognizes Bay Region style as being important to the City’s development, which it describes as 
including “large expanses of glass window walls, sliding doors and partitions, and lofty ceilings 
allowed the outdoors to flow flawlessly into the interior living spaces.” The former bank 
building located at the southeast corner of Dolores Street and 7th Avenue was designed by 
Walter Burde and is a good example of Bay Region style.  The Context Statement also identifies 
Minimal Traditional and Ranch style (both modernist) as being popular in Carmel during the 
post-war era. The Carmel Police Department building does not fall into these categories of 
modernist architecture. 
 
The Historic Context Statement does identify the various locations of civic buildings throughout 
the City’s history, including the current Police Department.  Several civic buildings such as City 
Hall, the Sunset Center, the Fire Department and Main Brach Library are listed on the City’s 
Historic Inventory.  In staff’s opinion, the 52 year-old Police Department does not rise to the 
level of importance of these buildings in terms of age and architectural style.  
 
Criteria B.  Shall retain substantial integrity. 
 
Staff Analysis:  Comparison of the current building to the original plans indicate that it has 
retained its integrity.    
 

126



Criteria C.   Should be a minimum of 50 years of age.  
 
1. Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns 

of local or regional history or the cultural heritage of California or the United States; 
 
2. Is associated with the lives of persons important to local, California or national history; 
 
3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of 

construction, or represents the work of a master, an important creative individual, or 
possesses high artistic values; or 

 
4. Has yielded, or has the potential to yield, information important to the prehistory or 

history of the local area, California or the nation. 
 
Staff Analysis:  The Carmel Police Department is 52 years old, but in staff’s opinion does not 
meet criteria #1-4. With regard to criteria #1, the Police Department was originally located at 
the northwest corner of Dolores Street and Ocean Avenue and in 1946 and moved to Mission 
Street and 7th Avenue (see Attachment B).  The Police Department relocated in 1966 to its 
current location at Junipero Street and 4th Avenue.  In staff’s opinion, the historic importance 
of the site is diminished by the fact that it is not the original location of the Police Department.  
Furthermore, the fact that the Carmel police have used this building for the past 50 years does 
not necessarily make it eligible for the Historic Inventory.   
 
With regard to criteria #2-3, the building was designed by Burde, Shaw & Associates Architects.  
Walter Burde is referenced in the City’s Historic Context Statement; however, this particular 
building does not represent his best work in the City, nor does it possess high artistic value.  The 
architectural style is minimal and without much expression. The site is not located in the 
Archaeological Significance Overlay zone, and therefore, Criteria #4 does not apply. 
 
Criteria D.  To qualify for the Carmel Inventory, a historic resource eligible under California 
Register Criteria No. 3 (subsection (C)(3) of this section) only, should:  
 
1. Have been designed and/or constructed by an architect, designer/builder or contractor 

whose work has contributed to the unique sense of time and place recognized as 
significant in the Historic Context Statement; or 
 

2. Have been designed and/or constructed by a previously unrecognized architect, 
designer/builder or contractor if there is substantial, factual evidence that the architect, 
designer/builder or contractor contributed to one or more of the historic contexts of the 
City to an extent consistent with other architects, designer/builders or contractors 
identified within the Historic Context Statement; or 

127



HE 18-136 (Carmel Police Department) 
April 16, 2018 
Staff Report  
Page 4  
 
3. Be a good example of an architectural style or type of construction recognized as 

significant in the Historic Context Statement; or 
  

4. Display a rare style or type for which special consideration should be given. Properties 
that display particularly rare architectural styles and vernacular/utilitarian types shall be 
given special consideration due to their particularly unusual qualities. Such rare examples, 
which contribute to diversity in the community, need not have been designed by known 
architects, designer/builders or contractors. Rather, rare styles and types that contribute 
to Carmel’s unique sense of time and place shall be deemed significant.  

 
Staff Analysis:  Walter Burde is referenced in the City’s Historic Context Statement as is 
associated with the building.  However, this particular building is not a good example of a type 
of architecture identified in the City’s Historic Context Statement as significant, and is not a 
style that contributes to Carmel’s unique sense of time and place. 
 
Summary:  The subject building does not meet the criteria necessary to be placed on the City’s 
Historic Inventory, and for this reason, staff recommends that the HRB uphold the 
Determination of Historic Ineligibility.  In staff’s opinion, one of the primary purposes of historic 
preservation is to retain buildings that add value to the community and contribute to its 
character.  The Police Department, in its current state, does not meet either of these objectives.  
If the HRB is concerned with maintaining the longstanding use of the building as a police 
department, then it should be noted that the proposed upgrades under consideration would 
allow the police to continue using this building for many years to come.   
 
 ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Attachment A – Preliminary Determination of Ineligibility  
• Attachment B – Photograph of Second Police Department 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION  

OF INELIGIBILITY 

 
On Wednesday, April 4, 2018 the Department of Community Planning and Building made a preliminary 
determination that the property identified below does not constitute an historic resource and is 
therefore ineligible for the Carmel Inventory of Historic Resources. 
 
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 010-096-013 
Current Owner: City of Carmel 
Block: 48, Lot(s): 1-2, 4, 6, 8-16, & 18  
Street Location: SE Corner of Junipero Ave & 4th Ave 
Lot size: 39,500 square feet 
Original Date of Construction: 1966 
 
The basis for this determination is: 
 
 The property lacks sufficient age to be considered historic. 
 
 The property has substantially lost its historic integrity through alterations, additions, 

deterioration, changes in the surrounding environment or other causes. 
 

 The property does not relate to historic themes or property types established in the Historic 
Context Statement for Carmel-by-the-Sea. 
 

 The property has no association with important events, people or architecture that are 
identified in the Historic Context Statement or that represent the historical/cultural evolution 
of Carmel-by-the-Sea. 
 

 There are other better examples of the builder’s work in the city. 
 
This preliminary determination will be circulated for a 10 calendar day public review period beginning on 
April 4, 2018, and ending at 5:00 P.M. on April 16, 2018. If no requests for further review are received 
during this period, the determination shall become final and shall remain valid for a period of 5 years. 
 
 

 
   
        Marnie R. Waffle, Senior Planner 

129

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment A - Historic Determination 



CARMEL POLICE DEPARTMENT - HISTORIC EVALUATION 
  
Date:  April 4, 2018 
APN:   010-096-013 (por.) 
Block:   48   
Lot(s):   1-2, 4, 6, 8-16, & 18 
Lot Size:  39,500 square feet (all) 
Year Built: 1966 
 

1. Location:  Southeast corner of Junipero Avenue and 4th Avenue 
 

 
Figure 1. Aerial Photograph from Monterey County Assessor 

 
 

     
 Figure 2. Assessor Parcel Map Figure 3. Carmel Zoning Map 
  

130



 
2. Is it on the Inventory? No, the property is not currently listed on the Carmel Inventory 

of Historic Resources. 
 

3. Has it been reviewed previously? No, the property has not been previously reviewed 
for historical significance. 

4. Sandborn Maps: N/A 
 

5. Land Use & Community Character Element, Subdivision Chronology Map: 1888 
 

6. Date of construction:  1966 
 

7. Original building permit: Building Permit 4458 
 

8. Alterations and changes: None. 
 

9. Info on designer/builder:  
a) Architect: Burde, Shaw & Associates Architects 

i. According to the Carmel Historic Context Statement, Burde, Shaw & 
Associates designed the Shell Gas Station at the corner of San Carlos and 
5th. The gas station was constructed in 1963-64 and was recognized with 
an award from the Governor’s Design Awards Jury in 1966 as California’s 
best example in the Service Facilities category. 

ii. Walter Burde is recognized in the Context Statement as a prominent 
architect who worked in Carmel during the post-war era. He was part of 
the local firm of Burde, Shaw & Associates. 

b) General Contractor: Comstock Associates 
i. Comstock Associates is not specifically mentioned in the Context 

Statement; however, it is well known for its association with Hugh 
Comstock whose fairy tale/storybook style of architecture has become a 
defining characteristic of Carmel. Comstock is also known for the post-
adobe method of construction which he developed during the post-war 
period. He is listed as a notable architect and designer/builder in the 
Context Statement. 

 
10. Current Photographs of Building: See next page. 
  

131



  
Photo 1. Junipero Ave, Front Entry Stairs 

 

  
Photo 2. Junipero Ave, Wall and Sign 

132



 
Photo 3. South Elevation, Entry Courtyard 

 

 
Photo 4. Junipero Ave, Parking Lot and Carport 

133



 
Photo 5. North Elevation @ Parking Lot 

 

 
Photo 6. 4th Avenue Wall @ Parking Lot 

134



 
Photo 7. 4th Avenue Wall (North Property Line) 

135



 

136

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - Second Police Department

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text


	MEETING AGENDA
	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION
	C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	D.  APPEARANCES
	E.  CONSENT AGENDA
	I.  ADJOURNMENT


	DS 17-335 (Voris) - HRB Packet.pdf
	DS 17-335 (Voris) - HRB Staff Report
	Attach A - Site Photographs
	Attach B - Conditions of Approval
	CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	DS 17-335 (Voris)

	Attach C - DPR 523A Form 'The Doll House'
	Attach D - Phase 2 Historic Evaluation
	Attach E - Secretary Standards
	Attach F - Resolution for Carmel Register
	RESOLUTION QUALIFYING A HISTORIC RESOURCE FOR
	LISTING ON THE CARMEL REGISTER

	Attach G - Project Plans Dec 2017
	Attach H - Color Renderings
	Color Rendering 1 - Front El
	Color Rendering 2 - South El
	Color Rendering 3 - West El


	HE 18-136 (Carmel Police Department) - Packet.pdf
	HE 18-136 Carmel Police Dept - Prelim Deter (combined) - 04.04.18.pdf
	HE - Carmel Police Dept - Preliminary Determination
	/CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
	PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION
	OF INELIGIBILITY

	HE - Carmel Police Dept - Evaluation - 04.04.18


	DS 17-174 (Munro) - Packet.pdf
	DS 17-174 (Munro) Attach F - Resolution for Carmel Register.pdf
	RESOLUTION QUALIFYING A HISTORIC RESOURCE FOR
	LISTING ON THE CARMEL REGISTER

	DS 17-174 (Munro) - Attach H - Revised Plans.pdf
	A101
	A201
	A202
	A300
	A301
	A302
	A303
	TOPO





